GRATON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING AGENDA
September 9, 2020 7:00pm

Farticipate by phone (605) 475-4120, passcode 3702384

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call

4, Corrections to the Agenda

5. Scheduled and U nscheduled Appea FaNCES. During this period, the Board of Directors will hear anyone who
desires to speak on subjects not listed on the Agenda. As a matter of policy, the Board will not make o decision unless it is of a routine
nature, which may be turned over to staff for disposition. Please limit your comments to five (5) minutes and please state your nome
and address for the minutes (optional).

6. Old Business
a. Status on Engineer and Firefighter positions

7. New Business
a. Review and Adopt Biennial Conflict of Interest Code
b. Review and Adopt new and updated Policies and Procedures

8. Committee Reports
a. Apparatus

9. Approval of prior Board Meeting Minutes

10. Purchase Requests

a. Consider additional insurance — terrorism
b. CALFIRE grant purchases
11. Bills & Warrants
12. Budget Report
a. Review and Adopt Final Budget
13. Correspondence
14, Fire Chief's Report
a. Roster, Alarms and Drills
15. Closed Session: Govt. Code section 54957(b){1): Fire Chief Job Review.
16. Adjournment

ADA Compliance

In compliance with Government Code 54954.2(a), the Graton Fire Department, will, on request, make this agenda available in appropriate alternative formats to persons
with a disability, as required by the section 202 of the American Disabilities Acts of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12132), and the federal rules and regulations adapted in implementation
thereof. Individuals who need this agenda in an alternative format or who need a disability-related modification or accommodation in order 1o porticipate in the meeting
should contact Sydney Pitts, Board Recording Secretary, at (707) 823-5515, 72 hours or more prior to the disability accommodations being needed in order to paorticipate in
the meeting.




2020 Local Agency Biennial Notice

Name of Agency:

Mailing Address:

Contact Person: Phone No.

Email: Alternate Email;

Accurate disclosure is essential to monitor whether officials have conflicts of interest and to
help ensure public trust in government. The biennial review examines current programs to
ensure that the agency’s code includes disclosure by those agency officials who make or
participate in making governmental decisions.

This agency has reviewed its conflict of interest code and has determined that (check one BOX):

An amendment is required. The following amendments are necessary:
(Check all that apply.)

O Include new positions

[] Revise disclosure categories

[J Revise the titles of existing positions

1 Delete titles of positions that have been abolished and/or positions that no longer make or
participate in making governmental decisions

[0 Other (describe)

8 The code is currently under review by the code reviewing body.

No amendment is required. (If your code is over five years old, amendments may be
necessary.)

Verification (to be completed if no amendment is required)

This agency's code accurately designates all positions that make or participate in the making of governmental
decisions. The disclosure assigned to those positions accurately requires that all investments, business
positions, interests in real property, and sources of income that may foreseeably be affected materially by the
decisions made by those holding designated positions are reported. The code includes all other provisions
required by Government Code Section 87302

Signature of Chief Executive Officer Date

All agencies must complete and return this notice regardiess of how recently your code was approved or
amended. Please return this notice no later than October 1, 2020, or by the date specified by your agency, if
earlier, to:

(PLACE RETURN ADDRESS OF CODE REVIEWING BODY HERE)

PLEASE DO NOT RETURN THIS FORM TO THE FPPC.

FPPC Advice: advice@fppc.ca.gov (866.275.3772)
Page 1 of 1




GRATON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST CODE
Updated 5/9/2017

SECTION ONE: PURPOSE. Pursuant to the provisions of Government Code Section 87300,
et seq., the Board of Directors of the GRATON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT (hereinafter referred to as
GFPD) hereby adopts the following Conflict of Interest Code. Nothing contained herein is intended to
modify or abridge the provisions of the Political Reform Act of 1974 (Government Code Section 8100).
The provisions of this Code are in addition to Government Code Section 87100 and other state or federal
laws pertaining to conflicts of interest, including, but not limited to, Government Code Sections 1090 et seq.
Except as otherwise indicated, the definitions of said Act and regulations adopted pursuant thereto are
incorporated herein and this Code shall be interpreted in a manner consistent therewith.

SECTION TWO: DESIGNATED MEMBERS.  All members of the Governing Board, the Fire
Chief and members of any committee with board delegated powers, are designated members and are
deemed to make, or participate in the making of decisions which may foreseeably have a material effect on a
financial interest of GFPD. No member who performs purely ministerial, clerical or service functions shall
be a designated member.

SECTION THREE: DISCLOSURE STATEMENTS. Each designated member shall file an
annual statement disclosing that member’s interest in investments, real property, and income, in the
following:

(a) Interests in real property which is located in whole or in part

(1) with the boundaries of this district,

(2) within two (2) miles of the boundaries of the district, or

(3) within two (2) miles of any land owned by the district, including any leasehold, beneficial
or ownership interest or option to acquire such interest in real property, if the fair market value of the interest
is greater than Two Thousand five Hundred Dollars ($2,500) and excluding property used primarily as the
residence of the designated member or spouse and property used for personal recreational purposes by the
designated member or spouse.

(b) Investments.

(¢) Income.

(d) His or her status as a director, officer, partner, trustee, member or holder of a position of
management in the business entity.

SECTION FOUR.  PLACE AND TIME OF FILING.

(a) All designated members required to submit a statement of financial interest, currently known as
the California Fair Political Practices Commission - Statement of Economic Interest Form 700 (hereinafter
referred to as Form 700), or any successor thereto, shall file the original in the Office of the Clerk or
Secretary of the District.

(b) The Clerk or Secretary of the agency which received the statement of financial interest shall
forward the document to the County Clerk.

(¢) Designated members are required to submit statement of financial interest shall submit an initial
statement within 30 days after assuming office.

(d)  All other members appointed, promoted or transferred to the position of designated member or

Graton Frie Protection District
Contlict of Interest Code
Date




members of any committee with Board delegated powers, shall file initial statements not less than 10 days
before assuming office, (or if subject to confirmation, 10 days before being confirmed) unless an earlier
assumption of office is required by emergency circumstances, in which case the statement shall be filed
within 30 days thereafter.

(e) Annual statements shall be filed during the month of February by all designated members. Such
statements shall cover the period of the preceding calendar year.

(f) A designated member required to file a statement of financial interest with any other agency,
which is within the same territorial jurisdiction, may comply with the provisions of this Code by filing a
duplicate copy of the statement filed with the other agency, in lieu of an entirely separate document.

SECTION FIVE. CONTENTS OF DISCLOSURE STATEMENTS. Disclosure statements
shall be made on forms supplied by the Clerk of this District, (currently Form 700), and shall contain all
information required by said form.

SECTION SIX: DISQUALIFICATION. The following shall govern disqualification:

(a) Duty to Disclose regarding Decisions Requiring Disqualification: Designated members must
disclose the existence of the actual or possible conflict of interest, and disclose all material facts to the
directors considering a proposed transaction or arrangement, and must disqualify themselves from making or
participating in the making of any decision which will foreseeably have a direct or indirect material financial
effect distinguishable from its effect on the public generally, on any reportable interest of that member or any
other financial interest as defined in Government Code Section 87103, except sources of gifts of less than
two hundred and fifty dollars ($250) in value. No designated member shall be prevented from making or
participating in the making of any decision to the extent his or her participation is legally required for the
decision to be made.

(b) Manner of Disqualification: A designated member required to disqualify himself or herself shall
notify the Governing Board at the meeting during which consideration of the decision takes place and that
notice shall be made part of the official records of the meeting.

(c) Determining whether a Conflict of Interest Exists. After disclosure of the financial interest and
all material facts, and after any discussion with the possibly contlicted designated member, he/she shall leave
the Governing Board while determination of a conflict of interest is discussed and voted upon. The
remaining board members shall decide if a conflict of interests exists.

(d) 1f the Governing Board has reasonable cause to believe a member has failed to disclose actual or
possible conflicts of interest it shall inform the member of the basis for such belief and afford the member an
opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. If, after hearing the member’s response and after
making further investigation as warranted by the circumstances, the Governing Board determines the
member has failed to disclose an actual or possible conflict of interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary
or corrective action. The possibly conflicted designated member shall leave the room while the
government board discusses the determination of a conflict of interest, and while same is being voted upon.

(e) In the event of a disqualification or possible disqualification, the minutes of the Governing Board
shall contain:

(1) the names of the persons who disclosed or were otherwise found to have a financial
interest in connection with the actual or possible conflict of interest, the name of the financial interest, any
action taken to determine whether a conflict of interest was present, and the Governing Board’s decision as
to whether a conflict of interest in fact existed.

(2) the names of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the
transaction or arrangement, the content of the discussion, including any alternatives to the proposed
transaction or arrangement, and a record of any votes taken in connection with the proceedings.




SECTION SEVEN: COMPENSATION. Voting members of the Governing Board who receive
compensation, directly or indirectly, from the organization for services is precluded from voting on matters
pertaining to that member’s compensation.

SECTION EIGHT: PROCEDURE FOR ADDRESSING THE CONFLICT OF INTEREST.

(a) A designated member may make a presentation to the Governing Board or committee meeting,
but after the presentation, he/she shall leave the meeting during discussion of, and the vote on, the
transaction or arrangement involving the possible conflict of interest.

(b) The chairperson of the Governing Board shall, if appropriate appoint a disinterested person or
committee to investigate alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement.

(c) After exercising due diligence, the Governing Board shall determine whether GFPD can obtain
with reasonable efforts a more advantageous transaction or arraignment from a person or entity that would
not give rise to a conflict of interest.

(d) If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably possible under
circumstances not producing a conflict of interest, the Governing Board shall determine by a majority vote
of the disinterested directors whether the transaction or arrangement is in GFPD’s best interest, for its
benefit, and whether it is fair and reasonable. In conformity with the above determination it shall make its
decision as to whether to enter into the transaction or arrangement.

SECTION NINTH: ANNUAL STATEMENTS. Each designated member shall annually sign a
statement which affirms that such person:

(a) Has received a copy of this conflict of interest policy.

(b) Has read and understood the policy

(c) Has agreed to comply with the policy




ANNUAL STATEMENTS OF DESIGNATED MEMBER

REGARDING CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY

I, the undersigned, being a designated member hereby affirm that 1:
(a) have received a copy of this conflict of interest policy.
(b) have read and understood the policy and
(c) agree to comply with the policy

Dated: , 20

Signature:




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

California Fair Political Practices Commission
Filings

305.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to provide a uniform method for complying with the Fair Political
Practices Commission (FPPC) requirements, for designated members to report all potential
economic conflicts of interest to the District.

305.2 POLICY

It is the policy of the Graton Fire Protection District to comply with state requirements, and
designate certain job classifications as required to file a Statement of Economic Interests
(Government Code § 87300).

305.3 PROCEDURE

The District requires certain job classifications to file a Statement of Economic Interests
(Government Code § 87300). These job classifications have been identified based on the
opportunity for personal gain that could result from official actions as a member of this department.

305.4 DEPARTMENT RESPONSIBILITIES

The Fire Chief shall designate a person to be the Conflict of Interest Filing Officer for the
Department, who shall be responsible for administering the filings in accordance with applicable
laws.

All Statement of Economic Interests filings shall be screened for compliance by the Conflict of
Interest Filing Officer. Members in designated classifications are required to disclose certain
economic interests, which may include investments, interests in real property, income and
business interests. All information provided by members on the Statement of Economic Interests
is a matter of public record.

305.4.1 FILING REQUIREMENTS
Members in designated job classifications must file the foliowing type of statements:

. Assuming office statement within 30 days after assuming office
. Annual statement due by April 1 each year
. Leaving office statement within 30 days after leaving the position

305.4.2 FILING PROCESS
The filing process is administered by the Conflict of Interest Filing Officer and includes the following
procedures:

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02. All Rights Reserved. California Fair Political Practices Comrmssson
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District Filings - 1




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

California Fair Political Practices Commission Filings

. A Statement of Economic Interests form and filing instructions shall be distributed
annually to designated department members. Additionally, forms shall be sent to
designated members upon notice of appointment or termination.

. A completed Statement of Economic Interests shall be returned to the Conflict of
Interest Filing Officer by the date indicated on the instructions.

. The Conflict of Interest Filing Officer shall screen the Statement of Economic Interests
for completeness, potential conflicts of interest and to ensure all designated members
have filed a statement, in accordance with FPPC regulations.

. Upon completion of the screening process, the Conflict of Interest Filing Officer
shall retain the original for a period of time in accordance with the FFPC and
the department’s established records retention schedules.

. A list of all department members with potential conflict situations will be compiled and
maintained in the Administration Division.

. Any change to the FPPC filing process shall be submitted to the governing body for
review and approval.

305.4.3 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

All members are required to report potential conflicts of interest even if they are not in a designated
classification. All members are disqualified from participating in government decisions in which
they have, or appear to have, a financial interest (Government Code § 87100). When a potential
conflict of interest situation arises, it must be reported immediately through the chain of command
to the member's immediate supervisor and then the Conflict of Interest Filing Officer.

305.4.4 DESIGNATED CLASSIFICATIONS
The Graton Fire Protection District has designated the following classifications as required to
complete a Statement of Economic Interests document in accordance with FPPC regulations:

. Fire Chief
. Fire Board of Directors Members
Copyright Lexipol. LLC 2020/09/02. All Rights Reserved. California Fair Political Practices Commission

Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Filings - 2




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

lliness and Injury Prevention Program

1000.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to establish an ongoing and effective plan to reduce the incidence
of injury and iliness for members of the Graton Fire Protection District, in accordance with the
requirements of Labor Code § 6401.7 and 8 CCR 3203.

Although this policy provides the essential guidelines for a plan that reduces injury and iliness, it
may be supplemented by department procedures outside the Policy Manual.

This policy does not supersede, but supplements any related Districtwide safety efforts.

1000.2 POLICY
The Graton Fire Protection District will adopt an lliness and Injury Prevention Program (IIPP) in
order to increase the safety of its members.

1000.3 ILLLNESS AND INJURY PREVENTION PROGRAM PLAN
The Health and Safety Officer (HSO) is responsible for developing an IIPP that shall include:

(a) Workplace safety and health training programs.

(b) Safety inspections.

(c) Informing members of IIPP guidelines.

(d) Recognizing members who perform safe work practices.

(e) Member evaluation processes, including member safety performance.

(f) A system ensuring that all safety and health policies and procedures are clearly
communicated and understood by all members.

(g) A communication system facilitating the continuous flow of safety and health
information between supervisors and members. This system shall include:

1. New member orientation, including a discussion of safety and health policies
and procedures.

2. Regularly scheduled safety meetings.
Regular member review of the |IPP.

Providing access to the iliness and injury prevention plan o members or their
representatives as set forth in 8 CCR 3203.

(h) Establishing Division Safety Coordinators and defining their responsibilities.

(i)  Posting or distributing safety information.

(i)  Asystem for members to anonymously inform management about workplace hazards.
(k) A system for reviewing whether safety mandates are being met that relate to:

1. Communicable diseases.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, Al Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** liness and |njury Prevention Program -1
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

lliness and Injury Prevention Program

e RS T <

9.
10.

Respiratory protection (8 CCR 5144).

Bloodborne pathogens (8 CCR 5193).

Aerosol transmissible diseases (8 CCR 5199).

Heat iliness (8 CCR 3395).

Personal protective equipment.

Emergency Action Plan (8 CCR 3220).

Fire Prevention Plan (8 CCR 3221).

Workplace Violence Prevention Plan (8 CCR 3342).

Hazards associaled with wildfire smoke (8 CCR 51471.1)

() Availability of forms that address:

1.

Identification, documentation, and correction of hazards, any unsafe condition
or work practice, and actions taken to correct them.

Investigations and corrective actions taken regarding individual incidents or
accidents.

Training records of each member, including the member's name or other
identifier, training dates, type of training, and training providers.

(m) Establishing a safety and health committee, which will:

N ok w

8.

Meet regularly.

Prepare a written record of safety and health committee meetings.
Review the results of periodic scheduled inspections.

Review investigations of accidents and exposures.

Make suggestions to command staff for the prevention of future incidents.
Review investigations of alleged hazardous conditions.

Submit recommendations to assist in the evaluation of member safety
suggestions.

Assess the effectiveness of efforts made by the Department to meet standards.

The HSO must conduct and document a review of the [IPP at least annually.

1000.4 DIVISION SAFETY COORDINATORS
Division Safety Coordinator responsibilities include but are not limited to:

(@) Ensuring member compliance with injury and iliness prevention guidelines and
answering questions from members about this policy.

(b)  Training, counseling, instructing, or making informal verbal admonishments any time
safety performance is deficient. Supervisors may also initiate discipline when it is
reasonable and appropriate under the Conduct and Behavior Policy.

Copyright Lexipol, LL.C 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** ilness and ]njury Prevention Prog ram - 2
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District
Policy Manual

lliness and Injury Prevention Program

(c) Establishing and maintaining communication with members on health and safety
issues. This is essential for an injury-free, productive workplace.

(d) Completing required forms and reports relating to injury and iliness prevention; such
forms and reports shall be submitted to the Administration Division Officer.

(e) Notifying the HSO when:

1. New substances, processes, procedures, or equipment that present potential
new hazards are introduced into the work environment.

2. New, previously unidentified hazards are recognized.
Occupational injuries and illnesses occur.

4, New and/or permanent or intermittent members are hired or reassigned to
processes, operations, or tasks for which a hazard evaluation has not been
previously conducted.

5. Workplace conditions warrant an inspection.

1000.5 HAZARDS

All members should report and/or take reasonable steps to correct unsafe or unhealthy work
conditions, practices, or procedures in a timely manner. Members should make their reports to a
supervisor (as a general rule, their own supervisors).

Supervisors should make reasonable efforts to correct unsafe or unhealthy work conditions in a
timely manner, based on the severity of the hazard. These hazards should be corrected when
observed or discovered when it is reasonable to do so. When a hazard exists that cannot be
immediately abated without endangering members or property, supervisors should protect or
remove all exposed members from the area or item, except those necessary to correct the existing
condition.

Members who are necessary to correct the hazardous condition shall be provided with the
necessary protection.

Al significant actions taken and dates they are completed shall be documented on the appropriate
form. This form should be forwarded to the Administration Division Officer via the chain of
command.

The Administration Division Officer will take appropriate action to ensure the |IPP plan addresses
potential hazards upon such notification.

1000.6 INSPECTIONS

Safety inspections are crucial to a safe work environment. These inspections identify and evaluate
workplace hazards and permit mitigation of those hazards. A hazard assessment checklist should
be used for documentation and to ensure a thorough assessment of the work environment.

The Division Safety Coordinators shall ensure that the appropriate documentation is completed
for each inspection.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** lliness and |njury Prevention Program -3
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

lliness and Injury Prevention Program

1000.7 RECORDS

Records relating to injury and iliness prevention will be maintained in accordance with the
established records retention schedule.

Copyright Lexipol, LL.C 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT***

lliness and Injury Prevention Program - 4
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Member Speech, Expression and Social
Networking

1142.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

This policy is intended to address issues associated with member use of social networking sites
and to provide guidelines for the regulation and balancing of member speech and expression with
the needs of the Department.

Nothing in this policy is intended to prohibit or infringe upon any communication, speech or
expression that is protected or privileged under law. This includes speech and expression
protected under state or federal constitutions as well as labor or other applicable laws. For
example, this policy does not limit an employee or Volunteer from speaking as a private citizen,
including acting as an authorized member of a recognized bargaining unit, about matters of public
concern, such as misconduct or corruption.

Members are encouraged to consult with their supervisor regarding any questions arising from
the application or potential application of this policy.

1142.1.1 APPLICABILITY

This policy applies to all forms of communication including, but not limited to, film, video,
print media, public or private speech, use of all Internet services, including the World Wide
Web, email, file transfer, remote computer access, news services, social networking, social media,
instant messaging, blogs, forums, video and other file-sharing sites.

1142.2 POLICY

Fire District members occupy a trusted position in the community, and thus, their statements have
the potential to contravene the policies and performance of this department. Due to the nature
of the work and influence associated with the fire profession, it is necessary that members of
this department be subject to certain reasonable limitations on their speech and expression. To
achieve its mission and efficiently provide service to the public, the Graton Fire Protection District
will carefully balance the individual member’s rights against the department’s needs and interests
when exercising a reasonable degree of control over its members’ speech and expression.

1142.3 SAFETY

Members should consider carefully the implications of their speech or any other form of expression
when using the Internet. Speech and expression that may negatively affect the safety of the Graton
Fire Protection District members, such as posting personal information in a public forum, can
result in compromising a member's home address or family ties. Members should therefore not
disseminate or post any information on any forum or medium that could reasonably be anticipated
to compromise the safety of any member, a member’s family or associates. Examples of the type
of information that could reasonably be expected to compromise safety include:

. Disclosing the address of a fellow firefighter.

kdek kkk i g
Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/08/02, All Rights Reserved. DRAFT Member Speech, Expression and Social
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District Networking - 1




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Member Speech, Expression and Social Networking

Otherwise disclosing where another firefighter can be located off-duty.

1142.4 PROHIBITED SPEECH, EXPRESSION AND CONDUCT

To meet the department’s safety, performance and public-trust needs, the following is prohibited
unless the speech is otherwise protected (for example, an employee or volunteer speaking as a
private citizen, including acting as an authorized member of a recognized bargaining unit, on a
matter of public concern):

(a)

(b)

(c)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Speech or expression made pursuant to an official duty that tends to compromise
or damage the mission, function, reputation or professionalism of the Graton Fire
Protection District or its members.

Speech or expression that, while not made pursuant to an official duty, is significantly
linked to, or related to, the Graton Fire Protection District and tends to compromise
or damage the mission, function, reputation or professionalism of the Graton Fire
Protection District or its members. Examples may include:

1. Statements that indicate disregard for the law of the state or U.S. Constitution.
2. Expression that demonstrates support for criminal activity.

3. Participating in sexually explicit photographs or videos for compensation or
distribution.

Speech or expression that could reasonably be foreseen as having a negative impact
on the credibility of the member as a witness. For example, posting statements or
expressions to a website that glorify or endorse dishonesty, unlawful discrimination
or illegal behavior.

Speech or expression of any form that could reasonably be foreseen as having a
negative impact on the safety of the members of the Department.

Speech or expression that is contrary to the canons of the Firefighters' Code of Ethics
as adopted by the Graton Fire Protection District.

Use or disclosure, through whatever means, of any information, photograph, video or
other recording obtained or accessible as a result of employment with the Department
for financial or personal gain, or any disclosure of such materials without the express
authorization of the Fire Chief or the authorized designee.

Posting, transmitting or disseminating any photographs, video or audio recordings,
likenesses or images of department logos, emblems, uniforms, badges, patches,
marked vehicles, equipment or other material that specifically identifies the Graton
Fire Protection District on any personal or social networking or other website or web
page, without the express authorization of the Fire Chief.

Accessing websites for non-authorized purposes, or use of any personal
communication device, game device or media device, whether personally or
department owned, for personal purposes while on-duty, except in the following
circumstances:

1. When brief personal communication may be warranted by the circumstances
{e.g., inform family of extended hours).

Copyright Lexipotl, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Member Speech, Expression and Social

Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Networking - 2




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Member Speech, Expression and Social Networking

2. During authorized breaks; however, such usage should be limited as much
as practicable to areas out of sight and sound of the public and shall not be
disruptive to the work environment.

Members must take reasonable and prompt action to remove any content, including content
posted by others, that is in violation of this policy from any web page or website maintained by
the member (e.g., social or personal website).

1142.4.1 UNAUTHORIZED ENDORSEMENTS AND ADVERTISEMENTS

While members are not restricted from engaging in the following activities as private citizens or
as authorized members of a recognized bargaining unit, members may not represent the Graton
Fire Protection District or identify themselves in any way that could be reasonably perceived
as representing the Graton Fire Protection District in order to do any of the following, unless
specifically authorized by the Fire Chief (Government Code § 3206; Government Code § 3252):

(@) Endorse, support, oppose or contradict any political campaign or initiative.
(b)  Endorse, support, oppose or contradict any social issue, cause or religion.
(c) Endorse, support or oppose any product, service, company or other commercial entity.

(d)  Appear in any commercial, social or nonprofit publication or any motion picture, film,
video, public broadcast or on any website.

Additionally, when it can reasonably be construed that a member, acting in his/her individual
capacity or through an outside group or organization (e.g., bargaining group), is affiliated with
this department, the member shall give a specific disclaiming statement that any such speech or
expression is not representative of the Graton Fire Protection District.

Members retain their right to vote as they choose, to support candidates of their choice and
to express their opinions as private citizens, including as authorized members of a recognized
bargaining unit, on political subjects and candidates at all times while off-duty. However, members
may not use their official authority or influence to interfere with or affect the result of an election or
a nomination for office. Members are also prohibited from directly or indirectly using their official
authority to coerce, command or advise another member to pay, lend or contribute anything of
value to a party, committee, organization, agency or person for political purposes (5 USC § 1502).

1142.4.2 POLITICAL ACTIVITY
The following rights are retained by firefighters by statute and are extended to all other members
by the Graton Fire Protection District (Government Code § 3252).

(a) No member shall be prohibited from engaging in political activity, unless otherwise
prohibited by law, in violation of department policy or any time a member is on-duty
or in uniform.

(b)  Members shall not be coerced or required to engage in political activity.

(c) A member can seek election to, or serve as a member of, the governing board of a
school district or any local agency where he/she is not employed, including, but not
limited to, any city, county, special district or political subdivision.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Member Speech, Expression and Social
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District Networking -3




Graton Fire Protection District
Policy Manual

Member Speech, Expression and Social Networking

1142 5 PRIVACY EXPECTATION

s Members forfeit any expectation of privacy with regard to emails, texts, or anything
publtshed shared, transmitted, or maintained through file- sharmg software or any Internet site
that is accessed, transmitted, received, or reviewed on any i 't technology
system .

geparin

{see the Information Technology Use Policy for additional

The Department shall nol require a member to disclose a personal username or password or
for accessing personal social media, or open a personal social website. ¢
. however, the Department may request access when it is reasonably believed to be relevant to
the investigation of allegations of work-related misconduct (Labor Code § 980).

1142.6 CONSIDERATIONS
In determining whether to grant authorization of any speech or conduct that is prohibited under
this policy, the factors that the Fire Chief or the authorized designee should consider include:

(a)  Whether the speech or conduct would negatively affect the efficiency of delivering
public services.

(b) Whether the speech or conduct would be contrary to the good order of
the Department or the efficiency or morale of its members.

(¢}  Whether the speech or conduct would reflect unfavorably upon the Department.

(d)  Whether the speech or conduct would negatively affect the member's appearance of
impartiality in the performance of his/her duties.

(e) Whether similar speech or conduct has been previously authorized.

(f)  Whether the speech or conduct may be protected and outweighs any interest of
the Department.

1142.7 TRAINING
Subject to available resources, the Department should provide training regarding the limitations
on speech, expression and the use of social networking to firefighters and supervisors.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, Alf Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Member Speech, Expression and Social
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District Networking -4




Policy Graton Fire Protection District

1 1 2 5 Policy Manual

Personal Appearance Standards

1125.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

In order to project uniformity and neutrality puBlic and
, members shall maintain their personal hyglene and appearance to o
professnonal image appropriate for this department and for their assignment.

ensure a

The procedures contained herein are intended to promote uniformity of the members of the
Department by addressing specific grooming items. However, nothing herein shall limit the

= department's ability to address any other grooming or personal appearance issues
> deemed improper for members of the Department.

that may be

1125.2 GROOMING STANDARDS

ihe The following appearance standards shall apply to all members except those whose current
assignment would deem them not appropriate or where the Fire Chief or the authorized designee
has granted an exception.

1125.2.1 PERSONAL HYGIENE

All members must maintain proper personal hygiene. Examples of improper personal hygiene
include . but are not limited to  dirty fingernails, bad breath, body odor, and dirty or unkempt hair.
Any member who has a condition due to a protected category (e.g., race, physical disability) which
affects any aspect of personal hygiene covered by this policy may qualify for an accommodation
and should report any need for an accommodation to a supervisor or the Administration.

1125.2.2 HAIR
The hairstyle of all members shall be neat in appearance. Hair must be no longer than the
horizontal level of the bottom of the uniform patch when the member is standing erect. Hairstyles

that extend below the top edge of the uniform collar should be secured in a tightly wrapped braid
or ponytail.

1125.2.3 MUSTACHES
A short and neatly trimmed mustache may be worn. Mustaches shall not ini

mouth or beyond the natural hairline of the upper lip.

1125.2.4 BEARDS AND GOATEES
Beards, goatees ©r . or any hair on the chin or near the bottom lip is prohibited

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. ¥R AFT*** Personal Appearance Standards - 1
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Personal Appearance Standards

1125.2.5 FACIAL HAIR
Facial hair other than sideburns, mustaches. and eyebrows shall not be worn, unless authonzed
by the Fire Chief or the authorized designee and n

1125.2.6 COSMETICS
Members are permitted to wear cosmetics of conservative color and amount.

1125.2.7 FINGERNAILS

Fingernails extending beyond the tip of the finger can pose a safety hazard to members working in
the field. For this reason, fingernails shall be trimmed so that no point of the nail extends beyond
the tip of the finger.

1125.2.8 JEWELRY AND ACCESSORIES

No jewelry or personal ornaments shall be worn by members on-duty on any part of the uniform
or equipment, except those authorized within this manual. Members should be mindful of wearing
jewelry that can become snagged or caught during performance of fire suppression duties.

. Necklaces or jewelry . worn around the neck . shall not be visible above the shirt collar.

. It is recommended that members refrain from wearing rings while assigned to
suppression.

"i

1125.2 POLICY
It is the policy of the Graton Fire Protection District that all members meet required personal
hygiene and grooming standards while on-duty or conducting official business.

11253 TATTOOS
Al no time will tattoos on the arms below the elbow pe visible while on-duty.

Any tattoo, brand, or mutiiation on the head, neck, scaip, face. or hand must be covered by
way of g uniform, busmess attire, or neutral-colored skin patch while on-duty. Taticos, brands, or

mutilations that are inappropriate, as determined at the sole discretion of the Fire Chief, must also
s not are not limited to . marks that exhibit or

be covered. Inappropriate marks may include . but
advocate discrimination ¢ :

marks that promote or express gang, supremacist, or extremist group affiliation. ; and marks that
depict or promote drug use, sexually explicit acts, or other obscene material.

1125.4 BODY PIERCING OR ALTERATION

Except for a single-stud pierced « , ring worn in the lobe of each ear, no body piercing
shall be visible while any member is on- duty or representing the Department in any official
capacity.

i

1

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. *AELYPA TRk Personal Appearance Standards - 2
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Personal Appearance Standards

Alteration to any area of the body 5 visible in any authorized uniform or attire . that is a
deviation from normal anatomical features and which is not medically required is prohibited. Such
body alteration includes . but is not limited to:

(a) Tongue splitting or piercing.
) The complete or trans-dermal implantation of any material other than hair replacement.
(c) Abnormal shaping of the ears, eyes, nose, or teeth.
)

Branding or scarification.

1125.5 CLOTHING WITH LOGOS , PICTURES, AND LETTERING
Firefighters shall not wear any clothing that has words or pictures that a reasonable person would
find offensive. Such clothing would need to be covered when in the view of the public.

1125.6 Qiﬁtﬁ@?@%ﬁ% ACCOMMODATION

The religious beliefs and needs of department members should be reasonably accommod:
Requests fr-,, religious accommodation sho d generally be granted unless there is a compelling

security or safety reason and ﬁmww the reguest is the least resirictive means available 1o

ensure security or safety. The Fire Chief should be advised any time a request for religious
accommodation is denied.

Those who request to wear headscarves, simple head coverings, certain hairstyles, or facial hair

lor religious reasons should generally be accommodated absent unusuzl circumstances.

1125 7 EXEMFPTIONS

viembers who seek cultural (e.g., culturally protected hairstvles) or other exemptions to this pcolicy
é:haa are protected by law should generally be accommodated (QO\/C” nment Code § 12926, A
member with an exemplion %y be ineligible for an assignment if the individual accommodation
presents a security or sajety rnisk. The Fire C

Chief Onouéa be
an accommodation is denied or when a member with a culiur
assignment based on a safely or security risk

vised any time a request for such
al or other exemption is denied an

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT***

Personal Appearance Standards - 3
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Workplace Violence

1121.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to make clear that the Department does not tolerate any dlrect or
implied threats of violence or violent behavior in the workplace or any act or behavior whic

is or can be perceived as threatening, hostile, and/or violent.

that

1121.2 POLICY
It is the policy of the Graton Fire Protection District to provide and maintain a safe work
environment for its employees, volunteers, and members of the public.

In responding to any violent behavior in the workplace, the Department is committed to providing
protection to all involved parties, including protection from future physical and/or mental harm and
the protection of the legal rights of victims, witnesses, and those instigating the harm.

1121.3 REPORTING AND INVESTIGATING

1121 3.1 MEMBER RESPONSIBILITY
1t Department members who experience, observe, or have knowledge of prohibited
behav;ors and ac‘uons in the workplace, have a responsibility to report the sntuatlon as soon as

police department, if a threat has been made or a crime has occurred.

Members should render aid to anyone who may be in need and be prepared to assist emergency
responders, as requested, following any incident of violence in the workplace.

1121.3.2 SUPERVISOR, MANAGER, DUTY OFFICER, AND DIVISION OFFICER
RESPONSIBILITIES

Upon receipt of a report of potential or actual workplace violence, supervisors shall gather as
much information as possible to assess and determine the severity and potential of the situation.
If the report is found to be credible, the next immediate supervisor shall be notified as soon as
practicable and appropriate action taken.

Local law enforcement personnel shall be notified immediately of all threatening or violent
behavior.

1121.3.3 INVESTIGATION
The =i & Administration Division will promptly, impartially, and with as much
confidentiality as practicable . coordinate the investigation of all reports of violent behavior.

Department members are required to cooperate in any investigation. A timely resolution of each
report should be reached and communicated to all parties involved as quickly as possible.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. *RADY R A FTH* Workplace Violence - 1
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Workplace Violence

1121.3.4 REPORTING NON-WORK-RELATED THREATENING OR VIOLENT BEHAVIOR
Department members who are victims of domestic violence or other threatening behavior outside
of the workplace or who believe they are potential victims of such behavior and fear it may enter

the workplace, are encouraged to report the situation as soon as possible to their =
“r><} \/ ,‘,.Z,Q‘ M

Supervisors receiving any such report shall contact the

Administration Division as soon as practicable so that any appropriate safety measures or plans
may be developed.

1121.3 PROHIBITED BEHAVIOR
No member shall engage in, encourage, or promote violent behavior toward any person while
conducting department business or on department property.

shall carry or possess weapons or explosives unless either:

(a) Permitted by department policy

(b) State or local law prohibits the Department from restricting the possession of the
weapon or explosive

1121.4 RETALIATION PROHIBITED
Any form of retaliation against a member for making a report concerning violent behavior in the
workplace is prohibited.

Any member who becomes aware of any retaliation or threatened retaliation shall immediately
notify his/her supervisor.

1121.5 RESTRAINING ORDERS

Members who obtain a restraining order listing their workplace, person, or the Department as a
protected area must provide a copy of the restraining order to their immediate supervisor or the
Fire Chief. The Department needs this information in order to provide a safe workplace.

1121.6 FOLLOW-UP ACTION

Any employee reported to have exhibited violent or potentially violent behavior will be afforded all
rights provided by law, the applicable memorandum of understanding, and/or the Firefighter Bill
of Rights provisions before the Department takes any disciplinary action.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Workplace Violence - 2
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District
Policy Manual

Workplace Violence

Actions that may be taken when an employee has been found to have violated this policy include
but are not limited to . the following:

. Mandatory participation in counseling

. Placing the employee on paid administrative leave pending investigation into an
alleged threat or act

. Corrective/disciplinary action up to and including termination

. Criminal arrest and prosecution

. Special procedures, such as job relocation or initiation of a court order

If, upon investigation, it is determined that an allegation is false or was made maliciously, the
employee who provided the false information will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and
including termination, as well as possible criminal arrest and prosecution.

1121.7 LEGAL ACTION

The i el Administration  Division , in consultation with the department’s legal counsel, will
determine if the Department will seek a temporary restraining order or injunction to reduce future
or threatened violent behavior in the workplace (Code of Civil Procedure § 527.8).

1121.8 CORRECTIVE ACTIONS

At the completion of the investigation and a review of the incident, or in the case of a threat of
violence, non-disciplinary corrective actions should be implemented or requested to ensure overall
workplace safety. These actions may include . but are not limited to:

. Placing the involved member on administrative leave pending further review and
determination of permanent action. Administrative lcave would be unpaid in the case
of a volunteer.

. Reassigning the member to a different work location.

. Referring the member to conflict resolution training sessions.

. Referring the member to the Employee Assistance Program (EAP).
. Modifying workstation designs and office traffic flow patterns.

. Requiring the ¢ nember to attend a fitness-for-duty evaluation.

. Developing specific workplace violence procedures for incident response, prevention,
and corrective actions.

1121.9 WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION
All department members are responsible for assisting in the prevention of violence in the
workplace.

The Department will provide appropriate training to members regarding workplace violence.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, Ali Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Workplace Violence - 3
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Workplace Violence

In the event a violent incident occurs in the workplace, the Fire Chief is responsible for ensuring
that all responsibilities have been met and actions carried out, as detailed in this policy, and shall
review the results of any investigation and ensure appropriate action is taken. Information gathered
during an investigation should be used for the continuous improvement of policies and procedures
to prevent workplace viclence.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Workplace Violence - 4
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Conduct and Behavior

1110.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE
The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines to prevent activities or behaviors that may lead
to disciplinary actions or dismissal.

1110.2 POLICY
Itis the policy of this department that its members strive to attain the highest professional standard
of conduct and discharge their duties in a courteous and professional manner.

1110.3 DEFINITIONS

Members-Members of the Department consist of the Officers, Engineers, and
Firefighters. Trainees and Cadets are considered to be Probationary Members. For simplicity,
Trainees and Cadets are referred to as Members in this section.

Officers-The Officers of the Department consist of the Fire Chief, Deputy Chief, Assistant Chiefs,
and Captains.

1110.4 RESIDENCY AND AGE REQUIREMENTS

1. Members must reside or work within the Graton Fire Protection District unless
otherwise approved by the Fire Chief.

2. Members must be at least 18 years of age unless in the Cadet program, or otherwise
approved by the Board.

1110.5 PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT

All members should be governed by the ordinary and reasonable rules of behavior observed
by law-abiding and self-respecting citizens, and should conduct themseives at all times in such
manner as to reflect favorably on the Department. Conduct unbecoming a member shall include
that which discredits the Department or the person as a member of the Department or which
impairs the operation or efficiency of the Department or its members.

All members should conduct themselves in a manner that will not impair the good order and
discipline of the Department. Members should not, while on-duty, indulge in offensive, obscene or
uncivil language, verbal or physical altercations or threats thereof or conduct which might cause
injury to another person.

All Members shall obey the orders of their superior Officers or Incident Commander. Refusing
to obey orders may result in suspension or discharge from the Department, or other disciplinary
actions, as determined by the Fire Chief.

All members of the Department should be familiar with the expected standard of behavior, both
on- and off-duty.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Conduct and Behavior - 1
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Conduct and Behavior

Pursuant to the District's Alcohol and Drug Free Policy, no open alcoholic beverages or other
controlled substances shall be allowed on District property nor shall they be allowed on the scene
of any fire, medical or other incident to which the Department is dispatched No Member will
be under the influence of intoxicating liquor or drugs while participating in any drill, meeting, fire,
medical or other incident.

Officers and Engineers shall set an example for other members and are responsible to ensure
that their activities and decisions pertaining to the operations of the District are consistent with the
following; all policies, common sense, and high moral standards.

Take every opportunity to help one another develop into a team.

Disregard for general safety rules will not be tolerated.

If a member of your team is having difficulties, take the initiative to help him/her.

Offer your help to anyone doing anything. One person works, all work.

Demonstrate compassion and caring for everyone we serve and everyone you serve with.
Have a positive outlook.

Suggest positive solutions to encountered problems.

Have integrity and display ethical behavior.

Exhibit exceptional personal hygiene. Keep clean. Maintain head and facial hair that does not
interfere with duties and OSHA standards.

1110.6 INTERACTION WITH THE PUBLIC

In the performance of their duties, members should be courteous to the public and tactful n the
5. They should control their tempers, exercise reasonable patience and
dtscretlon and should not engage in any argumentative discussions even when provoked.

In the performance of their duties, members should not use coarse, violent, profane or insolent
language or gestures and should not express prejudice pideh

1110.6 DISCRIMINATION, w@?«*& @%E@E& OR FAVORITIOM

3

L..}fw ess required by law or policy, discriminating against, oppressing, or providi 19 favaritism fo
any person because of actual or perceived characteristics such as race, ethnicity, national Q:ji;;;m

religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression. age, disability, economic stat

cultural group, veteran status, marital status, and anv other classilication or status pr etec ted

by law, or intentionally denving or impeding ancther in the exercise or enioyment of any right.

privilege, power, or immunity, knowing the ¢ onduus unlawful, is prohibited.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. *kk[Y A FT*** Conduct and Behavior - 2

Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Conduct and Behavior

1110.7 COURTESY TO MEMBERS

Members should be courteous and respectful in their relations with all members of the Department.
Members shall not use coarse, violent, profane. or insolent language or gestures, and shall not
express prejudice ¢

imination (Government Code § 12940 et seq.).

1110.8 CONFORMANCE TO LAWS
Members shall obey all laws of the United States and of any state and local jurisdiction in which
the member is present.

1110.9 DEROGATORY OR MALICIOUS STATEMENTS

Members should not be a party to any malicious gossip, report or activity which would tend to
disrupt department morale or bring discredit to the Department or any member thereof. Member
questions concerning department policy, activities, officers and/or safety issues shall be submitted
by official written communication to the member's immediate supervisor.

1110.10 POLITICAL ACTIVITY

Members should not engage in political activities of any kind while on-duty. Members are also
prohibited from engaging in any political activity off-duty while wearing any uniform items or
equipment that could identify them as members of the Department.

1110.11 SEXUAL ACTIVITY

Members should not engage in any sexual activity while on-duty. This includes use of any
electronic device to communicate or receive messages, photos or any other content of a sexual
or provocative nature.

1110.12 ILLEGAL GAMBLING

Members should not engage or participate in any form of illegal gambling at any time while on-
duty. This includes accessing gaming websites from computers or any electronic device, whether
department-issued or owned by the member.

1110.13 GIFTS AND GRATUITIES

Members should not solicit or accept any gift, including money, tangible or intangible personal
property, or any service, gratuity, favor, entertainment, hospitality, loan, promise, s« or any
other thing of value from any person, business, or organization that is doing business with, or
seeking to do business with, the Department or the District.

If it may reasonably be inferred that the person, business, or organization seeks to influence the
actions of an official or seeks to affect the performance of an official while on-duty, the incident

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. **kYRAFT*** Conduct and Behavior -3
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District



Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Conduct and Behavior

should be immediately reported to the next level supervisor. This rule does not take the place of
any relevant requirements applicable to individuals under Government Code § 1090 et seq. or the
State Political Reform Act, Government Code § 87100 et seq.

1110.14 OFFERS OF DONATIONS AND GIFTS OF THE HEART

Members who are approached with monetary donations following major disasters shall dll’(‘Ct the
person or entity to the . i
Division for instruction on proper ways to donate.

At no time should a member accept any monetary donation from the public. If a citizen offers a
gift of a non-monetary nature, such as food or product, the gift shall be placed in an area of the
station or office to be shared by all members.

At no time shall a member consider a gift of the heart as a personal present.

1110.15 ABUSE OF POSITION

Members should not use their official 1t positions, official identification cards, or badges to
avoid the consequences of illegal acts or for other non-work related personal gain. Members shall
not lend to another person their identification cards or badges or permit their identification cards
or badges to be photographed or reproduced without the approval of the Fire Chief.

Members should not authorize the use of their name, photograph, or official title that identifies
them as department members (e.g., in connection with testimonials or advertisements of any
commodity or commercial enterprise) without the approval of the Fire Chief.

Copyright Lgxipol‘ Ll‘_C »2020/09/02. AH_Righls Re§ew<a_d, ) ***DRAFT*** Conduct and Behavior - 4
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District



Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Conduct and Behavior

1110.16 PUBLIC STATEMENTS AND APPEARANCES

Members should not address public gatherings, appear on radio or television, prepare any
articles for publication, act as correspondents to a newspaper or periodical, or release or divulge
investigative information or information on any other matter of the Department while presenting
themselves or in any way identifying themselves as representing the Department, without the
approval of the Fire Chief.

1110.17 VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT

1. No Member shall remove District equipment, including turnouts, from the station for
any purpose other than drills, fires, medical aids or other incidents unless specifically
permitted by the Fire Chief.

2. A private vehicle may not be equipped with any emergency red lights and/or siren
unless authorized by the Board.

3. A private vehicle may not be equipped with any fire/medical transmitting devices
unless authorized by the Fire Chief.

4. A private vehicle may not be used for Department business, unless approved by the
Fire Chief, highest ranking Officer, or Incident Commander.

1110.18 DRILLS AND RESPONSE

1. Members must attend at least 50 percent of the scheduled drills and at least 10 percent
of the dispatched incidents over a 12-month period. The Fire Chief may waive these
requirements under special circumstances with prior approval.

2. Drills start at the time designated by the Fire Chief. Any Member who misses more
than 33 percent of a drill will not be given credit on the drill report. Members who
attend a drill but do not participate as determined by the Fire Chief or highest ranking
Officer at the drill, will not be given credit on the drill report.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Conduct and Behavior - 5
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Policy Graton Fire Protection District

1 1 09 Policy Manual

Discriminatory Harassment

1109 1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE
s The purpose of this policy is

to prevent department members from being subjected
to ales - discriminatory harassment, including sexual harassment
and rete « (Government Code § 12940(k); 2 CCR 11023). Nothing in this policy is intended
to create a !egal or employment right or duty that is not created by law.

1109.2 POLICY

The Graton Fire Protection District is an equal opportunity employer and is committed to creating
and maintaining a work environment that is free of all forms of discriminatory harassment, including
sexual harassment and retaliation. The Department will not tolerate discrimination against a
member in hiring, promotion, discharge, compensation, fringe benefits, and other privileges of
employment. The Department will take preventive and corrective action to address any behavior
that violates this policy or the rights and privileges it is designed to protect.

The nondiscrimination policies of the Department may be more comprehensive than state or
federal law. Conduct that violates this policy may not violate state or federal law but still could
subject a member to discipline.

1109.3
Dehnitions related to this policy include:

DEFINITION

0

1109.3.1 DISCRIMINATION

The Department prohibits all forms of discrimination, including any employment—related action by
a member that adversely affects an applicant or member and is based on the actual or perceived
race, ethnicity, national origin, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender |dent|ty or expression,
age, disability, pregnancy, genetic information, veteran status, marital status, and any other
classification or status protected by law.

Discriminatory harassment, including sexual harassment, is verbal or physical conduct that
demeans or shows hostility or aversion toward an individual based upon that individual's protected
class. It has the effect of interfering with an individual's work performance or creating a hostile or
abusive work environment.

Conduct that may, under certain circumstances, constitute discriminatory harassment can include
making derogatory comments or . making crude and offensive statements or remarks; making
slurs or off-color jokes; stereotyping; engaging in threatening acts; making indecent gestures,
pictures, cartoons, posters, or material; making inappropriate physical contact; or using written
material or department equipment and/or systems to transmit or receive offensnve mczterlal
statements, or p!ctures Such conduct is contrary to department policy and to ¢ <

& work environment that is free of discrimination,

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Djscriminatory Harassrnent - 1
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Discriminatory Harassment

1109.3.2 RETALIATION

Retaliation is treating a person differently or engaging in acts of reprisal or intimidation against
the person because f ¢ the person has engaged in protected activity, filed a charge of
discrimination, partlcxpated in an mvestrgatlon or opposed a discriminatory practice. Retaliation
will not be tGie ‘ ‘

viiolerated.

1109.3.3 SEXUAL HARASSMENT
The Department prohibits all forms of discrimination and discriminatory harassment, including
sexual harassment. Itis unlawful to harass an applicant or a member because of that person’s sex.

Sexual harassment includes but is not limited to unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual
favors, or other verbal, visual, or physical conduct of a sexual nature when:

(@) Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly as a term or condition
of employment, position, or compensation.

(b) Submission to, or rejection of, such conduct is used as the basis for any employment
decisions affecting the member.

()  Such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with a member's
work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work envirorment.

1109.3.4 ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS
Discrimination and discriminatory harassment do not include actions that are in accordance with
established rules, principles, or standards, including:

(a) Acts or omission of acts based solely upon bona fide occupational quallﬂcanons under
the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission and the California i Fai
Employment and Housing Council guidelines.

(b) Bona fide requests or demands by a supervisor that & the member improve His/he:
the member's work quality or output, that the member repor‘r to the job site on ’ume
that the member comply with District or department rules or regulations, or any other
appropriate work-related communication between supervisor and member.

1109.4 RESPONSIBILITIES

This policy applies to all department members = Al & who shall follow the intent of
these guidelines in a manner that reflects department polrcy orofessional standards, and the best
interest of the Graton Fire Protection District and its mission.

Members are encouraged to promptly report any discriminatory, retaliatory, or harassing conduct
or known violations of this policy to a supervisor. Any member who is not comfortable with reporting
violations of this policy to nis/her the member's immediate supervisor may bypass the chain of
command and make the report to a higher-ranking supervisor or manager. Complaints may also
be filed with the Fire Chief, or  the Fire Chief, or the Board of Directors.

Any member who believes, in good faith, that | the member_has been discriminated
against, harassed, or subjected to retaliation, or who has observed harassment, discrimination, or

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** [)iscrjminatory Harassment - 2
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Discriminatory Harassment

retaliation, is encouraged to promptly report such conduct in accordance with the
procedures set forth in thrs policy.

Supervisors and managers receiving information regarding alleged violations of this policy shall
determine if there is any basis for the allegation and shall proceed with a resolution as stated
below.

1109.4.1 QUESTIONS OR CLARIFICATION

Members with questions regarding what constitutes discrimination ¢ b, sexual
harassment, or retalialion are encouraged to contact a supervisor, a manager, the Fire Chief, o+
the Fire Chief, the Board of Directors or |, or the California Department of Fair Employment and

Housing (DFEH) for further information, dlrect|on, or ctarlﬁcatron (Government Code § 12950).

EV‘SDQO%\ IBILITIES

1109.4.2 SUPERVISOR
- The responsibiliies of supervisors and managers shall include

but are not limited 1o

(a) Continually # monitoring the work environment and /e 1o siriving fo ensure
that it is free from all types of unlawful discrimination, including harassment or

retaliation.

(b) Taking prompt, appropriate action within their work units to avoid and
minimize the incidence of any form of discrimination, harassment, or retaliation.

(c) ¢ > i Ensuring that their subordinates understand their responsibilities under
this policy.

(d) Ensu -nsuring that members who make complaints or who oppose any unlawful
employment practices are protected from retaliation and that such matters are kept
confidential to the extent possible.

(e) Making a imely determination regarding the substance of any

upon all available facis.

(f)  Notifying the Fire Chief or the Fire Chief in writing of the circumstances surrounding

any reported allegatlons or observed acts of discrimination, harassment, or retaliation
no later than the next business day.

1109.4.3 SUPERVISOR'S ROLE

Supervrsors and managers shall be aware of the followmg

(a) Behavior of supervisors and managers should represent the values of the Department
and professional standards.

(b) False or mistaken accusations of discrimination, harassment, or retaliation can have
negative effects on the careers of innocent members.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. ***DRA FT*** Discrgminatory Harassment - 3
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Discriminatory Harassment

Nothing in this section shall be construed to prevent supervisors or managers from discharging
supervisory or management responsibilities, such as determining duty assignments, evaluating
or counseling members, or issuing discipline, in a manner that is consistent with established
procedures.

1109.5 INVESTIGATION OF COMPLAINTS
Various methods of resolution exist. During the pendency of any such investigation, the supervisor
of the involved member © = should take prompt and reasonable steps to mitigate or
eliminate any continuing abusive or hostile work environment. It is the policy of the Graton Fire
Protection District that all complaints of discrimination, retafiation, or harassment shall be fully
documented, and promptly and thoroughly investigated. Jor e :

1109.5.1 SUPERVISOR RESOLUTION

Members who believe they are experiencing discrimination, harassment, or retaliation should
be encouraged to inform the individual that his/her  the behavior is unwelcome, offensive,
unprofessional, mappropnate However if the member feels uncomfortable . or
threatened . or has difficulty expressing i ~ the member's concern, or if this does not resolve
the concern, assistance should be sought from a supervisor . or manager who is a rank higher
than the alleged transgressor. or ihe Fire «

1109.5.2 FORMAL INVESTIGATION
If the complamt cannot be satisfactorily resolved through the supervisory resolution
process d bove, a formal investigation will be conducted.

The m 7 person assigned to investigate the complaint will have full authority to investigate all
aspects of the complaint. Investigative authority includes access to records and the cooperation
of any members involved. No influence will be used to suppress any complaint . and no member
will be subject to retaliation or reprisal for filing a complaint, encouraging others to file a complaint,
or for offering testimony or evidence in zny an investigation.

Formal investigation of the complaint will be confidential to the extent possible and will include but
is not limited to details of the specific incident, frequency . and dates of occurrences, and names
of any witnesses. Witnesses will be advised regarding the prohibition against retaliation, and that
a disciplinary process, up to and including termination, may result if retaliation occurs.

Members who believe they have been discriminated against, harassed, or retaliated against
because of their protected status are encouraged to follow the chain of command but may also
file a complaint directly with the Fire Chief, ihe Fire Chief, or the Board of Directors.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Dgscrimmatory Harassment - 4
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Discriminatory Harassment

1109.6.3 ALTERNATIVE COMPLAINT PROCESS

No provision of this policy shall be construed to prevent any member from seeking legal redress
outside the Department. Members who believe that they have been harassed, discriminated
against, or retaliated against are entitled to bring complaints of employment discrimination to
federal, state, and/or local agencies responsible for investigating such allegations. Specific
time limitations apply to the filing of such charges. Members are advised that proceeding with
complaints under the provisions of this policy does not in any way affect those filing requirements.

1109.6 DOCUMENTATION OF COMPLAINTS
All complaints or allegations shall be thoroughly documented on the appropriate forms and in a
manner designated by the Fire Chief. The outcome of all reports shall be:

(a)
(b)
(c)

(a)
(b)

Approved by the Fire Chief, the Board of Directors, or the Fire Chief,

depending on the ranks of the involved parties.

Maintained

n accordance with the

established

(a)

records retention schedule.

1109.6.1 NOTIFICATION OF DISPOSITION
The complainant and/or victim will be notified in writing of the disposition of the investigation and
i the actions taken to remedy or address the circumstances giving rise to the complaint.

1109.7 COMPLAINT PROCEDURE

1.

Any Member, Trainee or Cadet who has been subjected to harassment should contact
his/her immediate superior or the Fire Chief immediately after the incident.

Upon receipt of the complaint, the Fire Chief or his/her designee will conduct
an investigation, including contacting the person who allegedly engaged in the
harassment, inform him/her of the basis of the complaint and give the individual the
opportunity to respond in writing within seven (7) calendar days of being contacted
by the Fire Chief

The Fire Chief or his/her designee may hire an outside investigator based on the nature
of the complaint. This will extend the timeline of the process beyond the seven (7)
calendar days.

Upon completion of the investigation, including the receipt of any response by the
alleged harasser the Fire Chief will determine whether harassment has occurred. Both
parties will be notified of the Fire Chief's determination in writing within fourteen (14)
calendar days after completion of the investigation.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Discrimmatory Harassment - 5
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Discriminatory Harassment

5. If it is determined that harassment has occurred, appropriate disciplinary action up to
and including dismissal may be taken. The disciplinary action will be determined by
the severity and/or frequency of the offense, in accordance with these Policies and
Procedures.

Previous acts may be considered in the disciplinary proceedings.

If the Fire Chief is named as the accused Member, the Board of Directors shall act in
the capacity of the Fire Chief, to investigate the matter and issue its determination.

1109.8 TRAINING

All new members shall be provided with a copy of this policy as part of their orientation. The policy
shall be reviewed with each new member. The member shall certify by signing the prescribed
form that : the member has been advised of this pollcy, is aware of and understands its
contents, and agrees to abide by its provisions during *

term with the Department.

=Nt the member's

All members shall receive annual training on the requirements of this policy and shall certify by
signing the prescribed form that they have reviewed the policy, understand its contents, and agree
that they will continue to abide by its provisions.

1109.8.1 STATE-REQUIRED TRAINING

= The Traming Officer should ensure that emplovees receive
the required state training and education regarding sexual harassment prevention of abusive
conduct, and harassment based on gender identity, gender expression, and sexual orientation as

follows (Government Code § 12950.1; 2 CCR 11024):

(a) Supervisory emplovees shall receive two hours of classroom or other effecti
interactive training and educalion within six months of assuming a supervxsory
position.

(b)

(c) Al other employees shall receive one hour of ¢lassroom or o‘mer effective interactive
training and education within six months of their employment or sooner for seasonal
or temporary employees as described in Government Code § ?2950,3,

y

(d) Allemployees shall receive refresher training every two vears thereafter,

If the required training is to be provided by the DFEH online training courses, the Training Officer
should ensure that employees are provided the link or webglie ad;d,rek% to the training course
(Government Code § 12950 e

1109.8.2 TRAINING RECORDS

The Training Officer shall be responsible for maintaining records of all discriminatory harassment
training provided to members. Records shall be retained in accordance with established records
retention schedules and for a minimum of two years (2 CCR 11024).

Copyright Lexipal, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Discriminatory Harassment - 6
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Discriminatory Harassment

1109.9 REQUIRED POSTERS
The Department shall display the required poster regarding discrimination, harassment, and

transgender rights in a prominent and accessible location for members (Government Code §
12950).

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Discrjminatory Harassment -7
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Promotions and Transfers

1102.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE
The purpose of this policy is to establish required and desirable qualifications for promotion and
transfer within the ranks of the Graton Fire Protection District.

1102.2 POLICY
The Graton Fire Protection L

: , : : - D!% trict detﬂ rmines
promotions and transiers in_a non-discriminatory_manner. It is the pOIICy of the Graton Fire
Protection Dlstnctto utilize the promotional testing criteria, study materials, and testing instruments
available from ¢ e-State-Fire-N MY authenticated and validated !ocaﬁ
regional, and natior ailv recognized best practices in the fire service, This policy will establis

_required and desirable qualifications for promotion and fransfer within the ranks of | ho
nepa rtment based on these criteria..

SNEL

Nothing in this policy is intended to supersede any contract language related to promotional
requirements that may exist in a collective bargaining agreement.

1102.3 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
The following conditions will be used in evaluating members for promotion and transfer:

(a) Presents a professional, neat appearance
(b) Maintains a physical condition which aids in their performance
(c) Demonstrates the following traits:
1. Emotional stability and maturity
Stress tolerance
Sound judgment and decision-making ability

Personal integrity and ethical conduct

2

3

4

5.  Leadership
6 Initiative

7 Adaptability and flexibility
8

Ability to conform to organizational goals and objectives in a positive manner

1102.4 TRANSFERS
The following position is defined as a transfer and is not considered a promotion:

. Training Officer

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Promotions and Transfers - 1
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Promotions and Transfers

1102.4.1 DESIRABLE TRANSFER QUALIFICATIONS
The following qualifications are considered for transfer:

. Three years of experience
. Completion of the probationary period with the Graton Fire Protection District
. Expressed interest in the transfer position

. Education, training and demonstrated abilities in areas related to the transfer position

. Completion of any

. local, regional, or national training or certification for the transfer position

1102.4.2 TRANSFER CRITERIA
The following criteria apply to transfers:

(a) Administrative evaluation as determined by the Fire Chief. This shall include a review
of supervisor recommendations. Each supervisor who has supervised or otherwise
been involved with the candidate should submit these recommendations.

(b) The supervisor recommendations should be submitted to the Division Officer for whom

the candidate will work. The Division Officer should schedule interviews with each
candidate.

(c) Based on supervisor recommendations and those of the Division Officer after the
interview, the Division Officer should submit his/her recommendation to the Fire Chief.

(d) Transfers will be made by the Fire Chief.

The policy and procedures for all positions may be waived for temporary assignments, emergency
situations or for training.

1102.5 PROMOTIONS
Specifications for promotional opportunities are on file with the Graton Fire Protection District.

1102.6 TRAINING OFFICER RESPONSIBILITIES

It is the responsibility of the Training Officer to maintain a training file on each member of the
Department. Any relevant training certificate or certification document submitted to the Department
by a member should be permanently retained in the member’s training file.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Promotions and Transfers - 2
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Performance Evaluations

1101.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The objective of the evaluation system is to record work performance for both the Department
and the employee, giving recognition for good work and providing a guide for improvement where
needed. The employee performance evaluation report is a gauge in measuring performance
and is used for making personnel decisions relating to merit increase, promotion, reassignment,
discipline, demotion and termination. The report also provides a guide for mutual work planning
and review and an opportunity to convert general impressions into a more objective history of work
performance based on job standards.

1101 2 POLICY

¢ GiC sed, color, national ongin, ¢ g sl disabiib
status or sex getual or perceived race, ethnicity, national origin, religion, sex, sexual orientation,
gender identity or expression, age, disability, pregnancy, genetic information, veteran status
marital status, and any other classification or status protected by law.

1101.3 PROCEDURE
Within one year of appointment to a supervisory position, all supervisors should attend an
approved supervisory course that includes training on the completion of performance evaluations.

Each evaluation will cover a specific time period and should be based on the employee's
performance during that period. At the beginning of the rating period, each supervisor should
discuss the tasks of the position, standards of performance expected and the evaluation rating
criteria with each employee. When a non-probationary employee’s job performance falls below
the established standards of the job, the supervisor should, as soon as practicable but at least 90
days prior to the end of the annual evaluation period, advise the employee in writing in order to
provide an opportunity for the employee to improve performance. The invoived employee should
be provided the opportunity to initial any such writing and respond in writing within 30 days, if
desired. Failure to meet established performance standards is justification for an unsatisfactory
rating. Rating factors that are not observed are assumed to be performed at a standard level.

The performance evaluation report will be completed by the employee’s immediate supervisor.
Other supervisors directly familiar with the employee’s performance during the rating period should
be consulted by the immediate supervisor for their input.

1101.4 FULL-TIME PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES
All personnel will serve a 12-month probationary period before being eligible for certification as
permanent employees. Probationary firefighters shall be evaluated daily, weekly and monthly

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. *RRAFT*** Performance Evaluations - 1
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Performance Evaluations

during the probationary period. Performance evaluation reports shall be completed as defined
by the Administration by specific job classification for all other full-time personnel during the
probationary period.

1101.5 FULL-TIME PERMANENT STATUS EMPLOYEES
Permanent employees are subject to three types of performance evaluations:

Regular - A performance evaluation report shall be completed once each year by the employee’s
immediate supervisor on the anniversary of the employee’s date of hire, except for employees
who have been promoted. In the case of promotion, a performance evaluation report shall be
completed on the anniversary of the employee’s date of last promotion.

Transfer - If an employee is transferred from one assignment to another in the middie of an
evaluation period and less than six months have transpired since the transfer, an evaluation shall
be completed by the current supervisor with input from the previous supervisor.

Special - A special evaluation may be completed any time the rater and the rater's supervisor
believe one is necessary due to employee performance deficiencies. Generally, the special
evaluation will be used to document areas of performance deemed less than standard when follow-
up action is planned (e.g., action plan, remedial training, retraining). The evaiuation form and
associated documentation shall be submitted as one package.

1101.5.1 RATINGS
Outstanding - Performance that is well beyond that expected or required in the standards for the
position. It is exceptional performance, definitely superior or extraordinary.

Exceeds standards - Performance that is better than expected of a fully competent employee.
It is superior to what is expected or required by the standards for the position but is not of such
rare nature to warrant outstanding.

Meets standards - Performance expected of a fully competent employee and meets the standards
required of the position.

Needs improvement - Performance that is less than that expected of a fully competent employee
and less than the standards required of the position. A needs improvement rating should be
thoroughly discussed with the employee and include a structured plan intended to improve
performance, with short interval interim evaluations.

Unsatisfactory - Performance that is inadequate or undesirable, intolerable and inferior to the
standards required of the position.

Written comments should be used by the rater to document the employee’s strengths, weaknesses
and make any suggestions for improvement. Any job dimension rating marked unsatisfactory or
outstanding should be substantiated in the rater comments section.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Performance Evaluations - 2
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Performance Evaluations

1101.6 EVALUATION INTERVIEW

When a supervisor has completed the preliminary evaluation arrangements shall be made for
a private discussion of the evaluation with the employee. The supervisor should discuss the
results with the employee and answer any questions the employee may have. If the employee
has valid and reasonable protests of any of the ratings, the supervisor may make appropriate
changes to the evaluation. Areas needing improvement and goals for reaching the expected level
of performance should be identified and discussed. The supervisor should also provide relevant
counseling regarding advancement and training opportunities. The supervisor and employee will
sign and date the evaluation. Permanent employees may aiso write comments in the employee
comments section of the performance evaluation report.

1101.6.1 DISCRIMINATORY HARASSMENT FORM

At the time of the annual evaluation, the reviewing supervisor shall require the employee to read
the District and department harassment and discrimination policies. Following such a review, the
supervisor shall provide the employee a form to be completed and returned by the employee,
certifying:

(a) That the employee understands the harassment and discrimination policies.
(b)  Whether any questions the employee has have been sufficiently addressed.
(c) That the employee knows how and where to report harassment policy violations.

(d) Whether the employee has been the subject of, or witness to, any conduct that violates
the discrimination or harassment policy and that has not been previously reported.

The completed form should be returned to the supervisor (or other authorized individual if the
empioyee is uncomfortable returning the form to the presenting supervisor) within one week.

The employee’s completed form shall be attached to the performance evaluation report. If the
employee has expressed any questions or concerns, the receiving supervisor or other authorized
individual shall ensure that appropriate follow-up action is taken.

1101.7 EVALUATION REVIEW
After the supervisor finishes the discussion with the employee, the signed performance evaluation
report should be forwarded to the rater’s supervisor for review.

The second-level supervisor should review the evaluation for fairness, impartiality, uniformity,
and consistency, and evaluate the first level supervisor on the quality of the ratings provided to
employee.

1101.8 RECORDS MANAGEMENT

The original performance evaluation report should be maintained in the employee’s personnel for
the tenure of the employee’s employment. A copy should be provided to the employee and a copy
should be forwarded to the Administration.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. *RORAFT*** Performance Evaluations - 3
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Recruitment and Selection

1100.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to establish the recruiting, selection, training, and retention processes
utilized by the Graton Fire Protection District. This policy supplements any rules that govern
employment practices for the Graton Fire Protection District.

1100.2 POLICY

In accordance with applicable federal, state, and local law, the Graton Fire Protection District
provides equal opportunities for applicants and empioyees department members regardless of
actual or perceived race, ethnicity, national origin, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity
or expression, age, disability, pregnancy, genetic information, veteran status, marital status, or
and any other g ted-class classification or status protected by law. The Department does
not show partiality or grant any special status to any applicant, employee member, or group of
employees members unless otherwise required by law.

1100.3 RECRUITMENT
The Administration Division should employ a comprehensive recruitment and selection strategy
to recruit and select members from a qualified and diverse pool of candidates.

The strategy should include:
(a) Identification of racially and culturally diverse target markets.
(b) Use of marketing strategies to target diverse applicant pools.

(c) Expanded use of technology and maintenance of a strong internet presence. This may
include an interactive department website and the use of department-managed social
networking sites, if resources permit.

(d) Expanded outreach through partnerships with media, community groups, citizen
academies, local colleges, universities, and the military.

(e) Member referral and recruitment incentive programs.
(f)  Consideration of shared or collaborative regional testing processes.

The Administration Division shall avoid advertising, recruiting, and screening practices that tend
to stereotype, focus on homogeneous applicant pools, or screen applicants in a discriminatory
manner.

The Department should strive to facilitate and expedite the screening and testing process, and
should periodically inform each candidate of his/her status in the recruiting process.

1100.4 SELECTION PROCESS
The Department shall actively strive to identify a diverse group of candidates who have in some
manner distinguished themselves as being outstanding prospects. Minimally, the Department

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/08/02, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Recruitment and Selection - 1
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Recruitment and Selection

should employ a comprehensive screening, background investigation, and selection process that
assesses cognitive and physical abilities and includes review and verification of the following:

. A comprehensive application for employment (including previous employment,
references, current and prior addresses, education, and military record)

. Driving record
. Reference checks

. Employment eligibility, including U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS)
Employment Eligibility Verification Form 1-9 and acceptable identity and employment
authorization documents consistent with Labor Code § 1019.1 (documentation may
be requested upon hire)

. Information obtained from public internet sites

. Financial history consistent with the Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA) and
Investigative Consumer Reporting Agencies Act (ICRAA) (15 USC § 1681 et seq.;
Civil Code § 1786.12)

. Local, state, and federal criminal history record checks following a conditional offer of
employment unless otherwise required by law

. Polygraph or voice stress analysis (v
permissible) (Labor Code § 432.2)

. Medical and psychological examination (may only be given after a conditional offer
of employment)

analyzer _examination (when legally

. Review board or selection committee assessment

1100.4.1 PHYSICAL AND DRUG TESTING

All applicants, as a condition to becoming a Member of the Department shall take and pass a
medical exam by the physician approved by the District, initial and random drug and alcoho! tests,
and are subject to a pre-employment background check.

1100.4.2 VETERAN PREFERENCE

Qualifying veterans of the United States Armed Forces who receive a passing score on an
entrance examination shall be ranked in the top rank of any resulting eligibility list. The veteran’s
preference shall also apply to a widow or widower of a veteran or a spouse of a 100 percent
disabled veteran (Government Code § 18973.1).

1100.5 EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS

All candidates shall meet the minimum standards required by state law. Candidates will be
evaluated based on merit, ability, competence, and experience, in accordance with the high
standards of integrity and ethics valued by the Department and the community.

Validated, job-related, and nondiscriminatory employment standards shall be established for each
job classification and shall minimally identify the training, abilities, knowledge, and skills required
to perform the position’s essential duties in a satisfactory manner (see the Position Descriptions

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. kYR A FT** Recruitment and Selection - 2
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Recruitment and Selection

Policy). Each standard should include performance indicators for candidate evaluation. The
Administration should maintain validated standards for all positions.

Selection standards for promotional opportunities are detailed in the Promotions and Transfers
Policy.

1100.5.1 STANDARDS FOR FIREFIGHTERS
Generally, the standards may include the following requirements. The candidate should:

(a) Be atleast 18 years of age by the closing date of the recruitment period.

(b) Be in possession of a high school diploma or a General Equivalency Diploma (GED)
(for Career Firefighter).

(c) Have good vision in both eyes, with the ability to distinguish Occupational Safety and
Health Administration (OSHA) color codes for hazardous materials (e.g., blue, red,
yellow, white), and have no depth or peripheral vision impairment.

(d) Meet the objectives and minimum standards established by the District's worker's
compensation physical screening.

(e) Be willing to submit to current drug testing policy, which includes pre-employment and
random screenings.

(f)  Be in possession of, or have the ability to obtain, a valid state driver license in the
class required for the position sought.

(g) BeaU.S. citizen or have proof of a legal right to work in the U.S.

1100.6 BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION

Every candidate shall undergo a thorough background investigation to verify his/her personal
integrity and high ethical standards, and to identify any past behavior that may be indicative of the
candidate’s unsuitability to perform duties relevant to the operation of the Graton Fire Protection
District.

1100.6.1 NOTICES
TheFire Chief shall ensure that investigations are conducted and notices provided in accordance
with the requirements of the FCRA and the ICRAA (15 USC § 1681d; Civil Code § 1786.16).

1100.6.2 CRIMINAL BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Criminal background information, whether directly from criminal offender record information
(CORI) or provided by a third party, may have restrictions on the access, use, security, and
release of the information. The Fire Chief shall establish procedures to ensure compliance with
any applicable requirements and security limitations (Government Code § 12952).

1100.6.3 REVIEW OF SOCIAL MEDIA SITES

Due to the potential for accessing unsubstantiated, private, or protected information, the District
shall not require candidates to provide passwords, account information, or access to password-
protected social media accounts (L.abor Code § 980).

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, Al Rights Reserved, RV A FTHx* Recruitment and Selection - 3
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Recruitment and Selection

The District should consider utilizing the services of an appropriately trained and experienced
third party to conduct open source, internet-based searches and/or review information from social
media sites to ensure that:

. The legal rights of candidates are protected.
. Material and information to be considered are verified, accurate, and validated.

. The Department fully complies with applicable privacy protections and local, state,
and federal law.

Regardless of whether a third party is used, the District should ensure that potentially
impermissible information is not available to any person involved in the candidate selection
process.

1100.6.4 RECORDS RETENTION
The background report and all supporting documentation shall be maintained in accordance with
the established records retention schedule.

1100.6.5 DOCUMENTING AND REPORTING

The background investigator shall summarize the results of the background investigation in a
report that includes sufficient information to allow the reviewing authority to decide whether to
extend a conditional offer of employment. The report shall not include any information that is
prohibited from use, including that from social media sites, in making employment decisions.
The report and all supporting documentation shall be included in the candidate’s background
investigation file.

1100.7 DISQUALIFICATION GUIDELINES
As a general rule, performance indicators and candidate information and records shall be
evaluated by considering the candidate as a whole, and taking into consideration the following:

. Age at the time the behavior occurred

. Passage of time

. Patterns of past behavior

. Severity of behavior

. Probable consequences if past behavior is repeated or made public
. Likelihood of recurrence

. Relevance of past behavior to public safety employment

. Aggravating and mitigating factors
. Other relevant considerations

A candidate’'s qualifications will be assessed on a case-by-case basis, using a totality-of-the-
circumstances framework.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Recruitment and Selection - 4
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Recruitment and Selection

1100.8 TRAINING

All entry-level firefighter candidates should complete training in an accredited fire training program
meeting the standards established by the Office of the State Fire Marshal (OSFM), including the
California Fire Service Training and Education System (CFSTES) (Health and Safety Code §
13159 et seq.).

1100.9 RETENTION
The primary focus should be on hiring those who are the best fit for a particular position. in order
to retain quality members, the Department should:

. Seek member input on retention strategies.

. Develop a workplace that respects, encourages, and enables a work/life balance.
. Facilitate training and career development opportunities.

. Develop and maintain quality supervisors.

. Provide regular and meaningful performance feedback.

. Ensure a standard level of abilities through proficiency testing.

. Promote an environment where members are able to speak freely.

. Treat members fairly, equitably, and consistently.
. Consider ways to reward excellent performance.
. Follow up on any feedback acquired during an exit interview process.

Retention incentives may include items from employment benefits, seniority benefits, and forms
of recognition.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/02, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Recruitment and Selection - 5
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Personnel Terms - Full-Time Firefighters

1145.1 CLASSIFICATIONS
The following classifications are established for full-time employees of the District, as detailed in
the job descriptions previously approved by the Board:

(a) Firefighter
(b) Engineer
(c) Captain

1145.2 PROBATIONARY PERIOD
The probationary period for each classification will be 18 months.

1145.3 WAGES AND SALARY SCHEDULE

1. Employees shall be paid by no later than the 15th of each month. The pay period will
include the prior calendar month (i.e., June 1-30 is paid no later than July 15th).

2. Allemployees will be provided direct deposit of their regular and overtime paychecks,
unless they request differently.

3. Each classification will be divided into pay steps as designated below:
(a) Firefighter - 1 step (Probationary)

(b) Engineer - 5 steps (Step 1: Probationary/Step 2: Permanent/Step 3/Step 4/Step
5: Top Step)

(c) Captain - 3 steps (Probationary/Permanent/Top Step)

Firefighter

Step 1 $57,909.27 $59,646.55
Engineer

Step 1 $63,255.03 $65,152.68
Step 2 $66,417.78 $68,410.32
Step 3 $69,754.43 $71,847.06
Step 4 $73,242.16 $75,439.43
Step 5 $76,904.26 $79,211.39
Captain

Step 1 N/A $80,749.48
Step 2 N/A $87,328.74
Step 3 N/A $91,695.17

A five percent (56%) minimum separation shall be maintained in the Base Rate of Pay

between each position step and the next.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/06, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

***DRAFT***

Personnel Terms - Full-Time Firefighters - 1




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Personnel Terms - Full-Time Firefighters

Each Employee entering a classification for the first time shall be placed in the
probationary step for 18 months.

No later than 18 months after an Employee commences a probationary step, the Chief
shall evaluate the performance of that Employee and shall take one of the following
actions:

(a) Terminate the Employee’s employment.

(b)  Return the Employee to the classification and step from which the Employee
was previously promoted.

(c) Promote the Employee to the next regular step within the classification.

After the Probationary Step, the Employee will advance to the next regular step within
the classification on an annual basis, effective the anniversary date after the Employee
passes the probationary period in that classification.

1145.4 HOURS AND OVERTIME

1.

The work cycle of the Employees shall consist of two (2) consecutive 24-hour on-duty
shifts within a six (6) day cycle.

(a) This schedule is referred to as “48-96" or “2 by 4.”
Each work cycle begins at 0800 on day one and ends at 0800 on day three.

The District will apply the extended work period of 24 days of Section 207(k) exemption
under the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA).

For purposes of illustration only, the shift schedule pattern for employees working a fifty-
six (56) hour work week consists of eight (8) twenty-four (24) hour on-duty periods within
a twenty-four (24) day cycle which is worked in accordance with the following chart:

X = 24-hour on-duty period O = 24-hour off-duty period
SCHEDULE: XOOOOXXO0O0OOXXO0O00OXX0000

Firefighters, Fire Engineers and Fire Captains assigned to 24-hour shift duty shall
receive overtime pay at time-and-one-half computed at their regular rate of pay for
those hours worked in excess of regularly scheduled shifts.

All overtime shall be authorized in writing by the Fire Chief prior to being compensated.

All overtime shall be paid to the nearest quarter hour worked where no minimum is
authorized.

Instead of receiving the cash value for overtime earned, Employees, at their election,
may apply overtime hours worked to Compensatory Time Off (CTO) at one and one-
half hours per hour of overtime worked.

(a) Employee shall state on timecard that CTO is requested in place of overtime.
(b) Employees may accumulate up to 80 hours of CTO.

(¢) Accrued CTO greater than 80 hours will be cashed out pursuant to the Fair Labor
Standards Act.

Copyright Lexipol. LLC 2020/09/06, All Rights Reserved., ***DRAFT*** Personnel Terms - Full-Time Fireﬁghters -2
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Personnel Terms - Full-Time Firefighters

1145.5 LONGEVITY
The District agrees to pay Longevity Pay to safety Employees who have been employed on a full-
time regular basis and for consecutive years of employment as follows:

(a)

(b)

(©)

On the anniversary date of the 14th year of continuous full-time employment,
employees will receive 2.5% additional pay per month of base pay.

On the anniversary date of the 19th year of continuous full-time employment,
employees will receive 2.5% additional pay per month of base pay (for a total of 5%).

On the anniversary date of the 24th year of continuous full-time employment,
employees will receive 2.5% additional pay per month of base pay (for a total of 7.5%).

1145.6 INSURANCE

1.

Full-time Employees of the District and their legal dependents, as defined by the State
of California and the Internal Revenue Service, are eligible to participate in a group
medical plan provided by the District.

Each Employee can choose between two plans for health insurance.

Each Employee will pay 15% of the monthly premium health plan rates, and the District
will pay 85% of the monthly premium per Employee.

Each District Employee will pay 10% of the monthly premium dental plan rates, and
the District will pay 90% of the monthly premium per Employee.

The District will make available to its Employees and their dependents, Vision
Insurance coverage, and pay 100% of the premium per month.

1145.7 TRAINING

1. A training budget for the fiscal year will be set between the Training Officer and the

Fire Chief and included in the Fiscal Year Budget for Board Approval.

1. All classes must be approved in advance by the Training Officer or Fire Chief,
including those that require coverage for Employees who are scheduled to be
on-duty during the course.

2. The training budget will not be exceeded annually except by the permission of
the Fire Chief.

2. The District will reimburse for tuition, books, and other required class materials for all
approved classes.

1. All books and class materials remain the property of the District.

2. Proof of completion and certificates must be submitted to the Training Officer
after the class.

(@ Ifthe District pays for the class, employees not completing a training class
will be responsible for reimbursing the District for all related expenses.
(b)  Any appeals must be made to the Board of Directors.
Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/06, All Rights Reserved. wRk[) R A FT*%% Personnel Terms - Full-Time Firefighters - 3

Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Personnel Terms - Full-Time Firefighters

3. Per-diem may be provided on the following basis:

1. Meals per-diem and mileage reimbursement (if no District vehicle is used) will be
provided for all approved classes held outside of the District per IRS guidelines.

2, If lodging reimbursement is requested, it must be approved in advance by the
Training Officer or Fire Chief and will be paid following IRS guidelines.

4, Employees will not be paid for off-duty class attendance unless with prior written
approval by the Fire Chief.

1. If approved, Employee will be paid for the class hours and travel time to and
from the class.

5. Employees will use a District vehicle for training classes.
1. If a District vehicle is not available, private vehicles may be used.
2. Mileage will be reimbursed at the current IRS rate.

3. Private vehicles used for travel must have the proper insurance coverage as
designated by the District's Liability Insurance Carrier.

1145.8 UNIFORMS

1. The District will provide the following Duty Uniforms annually, at no cost to the
Employee, as needed:

(&) 6-T-shirts
(b) 2 -Pairs of uniform pants

2. The District will provide the following Duty Uniforms, at no cost to the Employee, on
an "as needed" basis:

(@) Boots (duty or wildland); up to $200 every two (2) years
(b)  ANSI-rated rain jacket

(c) Baseball hat

(d)

(e) Belt

Uniform shirt

The District will provide, at no cost to the Employee, all required uniform insignia.
The District will replace uniforms damaged as a result of District activities.

Uniforms or equipment lost or damaged during non-District activities will be replaced
at the expense of the Employee.

6.  The Fire Chief has the authority to provide additional uniform items as outlined in the
District’'s budget.

1. The District shall provide safety equipment as required by Cal/OSHA regulations
at no cost to the Employees.

Copyright Lexipot, LLC 2020/08/06, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Personnel Terms - Full-Time Fireﬂghters -4
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Personnel Terms - Full-Time Firefighters

Additions and changes to District uniforms and safety equipment shall be approved by the Chief
or his/her designee.

1145.9 ACCRUED LEAVES

1 Annual Leave: Each Employee will accrue Annual Leave based on the following
length of service schedule, except for accrued Paid Sick Leave as provided below in
Section 4:

(@)  One (1) year, but less than three (3) years — Six (6) hours per month

(b)  Three (3) years but less than five (5) years — Eight (8) hours per month

(c) Five (5) years but less than ten (10) years — Ten (10) hours per month

(d) Ten (10) years but less than fifteen (15) years — Twelve (12) hours per month

(e) Fifteen (15) years but less than twenty (20) years — Fourteen (14) hours per
month

(f)  Twenty (20) years or more of service — Sixteen (16) hours per month

2 If an Employee carries accumulated Annual Leave of more than 240 hours into any
new fiscal year, the Employee will cease to accrue Annual Leave hours until their
accrued Annual Leave hours drop below 240 hours.

3 Once the Employee's accrued Annual Leave hours drop below 240 hours, they will
begin accruing PTO on the first day of the following month. Total accrued PTO may
then exceed 240 until the beginning of the next fiscal year.

4 Sick leave may be taken from the annual accrued leave for personal illness,
immediate family emergencies or iliness as defined by state and federal law.

(@) Annual Paid Sick Leave will accrue as follows from the first day of
employment:
i.  One hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours worked;

il. Maximum accrual is three (3) days/seventy-two (72) hours per year;
iii. Employees are allowed to carry over paid sick days to the following year
of employment, up to an accrual cap of three (3) days/seventy-two (72)
hours.  Accrual of paid sick leave does not resume until the available

paid sick leave drops below the 3 days/72 hours annual accrual cap.

iv. Employees who work at least 30 days per year may access this sick

leave.
(b) Reasonable medical evidence of Employee’s iliness may be required for use of
sick leave for periods of less than three (3) consecutive shift days.
(c) Reasonable medical evidence of iliness shall be required for the use of sick
leave for a period over three (3) consecutive shift days.
(d) Employees shall notify the Fire Chief as soon as possible and at least one (1)
hour before shift change, if reasonably possible.

(e) Vacancies will be filled by a qualified member (i.e., Engineer for Engineer,
Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/06, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Personnel Terms - Full-Time Fireﬂgh’gers -5

Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Personnel Terms - Full-Time Firefighters

Firefighter for Firefighter) when possible. Priority for filling the vacancy will be to
qualified part-time (i.e., volunteer) staff, then full-time staff.

i. If the position cannot be filled using the above process, the mandatory
callback or holdover of a full-time Employee will be used.

5. Vacation: All Employees shall submit in writing a request for taking vacation time from
their annual accrued leave bank to the Fire Chief or designee.

(a) Vacation requests will be considered based on the following criteria:
i There is no impairment to the efficiency of operations of the District.

ii. The Employee has the accrued PTO hours available.

ii.  The vacation does not cause the mandatory use of an off-duty, full-time
employee to cover the vacancy.

iv.  There is a qualified member available to fill the request.

(b)  Officers will only be used to fill Engineer vacation requests after an attempthas
been made to fill the vacancy with all other full-time Engineers and Qualified
Volunteer Driver Operators.

8. Paid Bereavement Leave, for up to one (1) calendar week, regardless of shift
schedule, shall be granted from the accrued annual leave bank in case of the death of
a mother, father, spouse, sister, brother, son, daughter, or grandparent of an employee
or Employee's spouse.

1145.10 HOLIDAYS
The following are designated District-paid holidays:

1 New Year's Day

2 Martin Luther King Day
3 President's Birthday

4 Memorial Day

5 Fourth of July

6. L.abor Day

7 Columbus Day

8 Veteran's Day

9 Thanksgiving Day

10. Christmas Day

When a holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be observed. When a holiday falls
on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be observed.

1145.11 RETIREMENT

1. Employees are eligible for a 2.7% @ 57 California Public Employee Retirement Plan
(PEPRA). Employees are required to contribute towards their retirement contributions
as defined by PEPRA.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/06, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Personnel Terms - Full-Time Fireﬂghters -6
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Personnel Terms - Full-Time Firefighters
1145.12 SPECIAL BENEFITS

1. The District will offer a 457 Deferred Compensation Plan as a supplemental income
plan for its Employees.

(@ Contributions to the plan will be made solely through the Employee's pre-tax
contributions.

(b)  The District will not make any contribution to an Employee's 457 Plan, unless
an employee was previously eligible for “classic” CalPERS (i.e., 3% @ 55) at
another agency, the District shall offer that employee up to 3% matching funds
paid by the District.

1145.13 STAFFING

Generally, staffing, per shift, will be two (2) qualified members, one of which must possess a
minimum Firefighter Class C Driver's License or a Class A/B License, with tank and air brake
endorsements and has completed the internal driver training. Exceptions can be made by the Fire
Chief or designee (e.g., newly hired engineer in the process of completing driver training).

1145.14 SHIFT TRADES

1. All Employees shall submit in writing a request to trade with another Employee tothe
Fire Chief or designee.

2. The trading of work schedules is done voluntarily and not at the request of the District.

(@ The reason for trading time is not for any benefit of the District, but rather due
to the Employee's desire to attend to personal matters.

(b) The Employee taking time off will be paid their regular pay.

(c)  The Employee working the trade will be qualified in the position of the Employee
taking time off and will be repaid, by the other Employee, when the trade is
reciprocated later.

3. The full-time staff will not trade with part-time staff (i.e., volunteers) regardless of
qualifications.

1145.15 SEPARATION PAY

1. Upon separation from service with the District, each Employee shall be entitled to
payout of all accrued leaves — annual leave and CTO, if any.

2. Separation pay rates shall be based on the individual Employee's hourly rate as of
the last day of employment.

3. In the event of a death, Employee’s pay shall be made to his/her estate or as otherwise
provided by law.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/06, Ali Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Personnel Terms - Full-Time Fjreﬂghters -7
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District




GRATON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES
August 11,2020 7:00pm

vk e

Participate by phone (605) 475-4120, passcode 370238#

Call to Order 7:00
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call - Maddocks, Cesaretti, Nunes. Also present: Chief Bullard.

Additions or Corrections to Agenda: None

Scheduled and Unscheduled Appearances. Linda Tripoli of Sebastopol shared concern
about MOU within the Board packet not being on the agenda. She cited concern for
transparency and proper notice to the public. Requested the MOU be removed.
President Maddocks pulled any discussion on the MOU until a future date.

Old Business

a.

Status on Engineer and Firefighter positions: Chief Bullard reported waiting for
CalPERS details to be finalized. They are delaying the new agreement due to potential
changes in internal policies. All candidates have passed physical, psychological, and
background checks.

. COVID-19 Response & Protection: Continuing to do all the steps with social distancing

and masking consistent with other departments to mitigate the spread. Director
Nunes noticed a meeting at the station where protocol procedures were not being
followed. Chief Bullard had been made aware of the issue and it was correct. He
requested being notified as soon as possible if protocols are not followed and he will
follow up immediately. Director Nunes requested that firefighters share the phone
number for people calling about COVID protocol violations if the public calls the
station; Chief Builard agreed to make it happen.

New Business

a.

Consider and adopt Agreement for Collection of Special Taxes, Fees and Assessments:
Following discussion, Nunes moved to accept the agreement for collection of fees
and assessment. Cesaretti 2nd. Passed. 3-0-2.

. Consider and Approve additional insurance Recommendations: Following discussion,

Cesaretti moved to purchase Long Term Disability Insurance from Provident
Insurance. Nunes 2nd. Passed 3-0-2.

. Review and Adopt new and updated Policies and Procedures: There are 3 sections of

changes; part 1 is where there was overlap in Lexipol with standard operating
guidelines, 2nd part updates the appeal section of the Grievance procedure and part




10.

11.

12.

13.

3 includes 10 new policies specific to full time employees. Due to lack of Director
attendance, Chief Bullard recommended tabling for the next meeting to allow time
for the Board to review. President Maddocks agreed.

Committee Reports

a. Apparatus: Nothing new to report. Lots of driver training creating many new drivers.

Approval of prior Board Meeting Minutes: Correction needed to add Gray to Roll Call.

Cesaretti moved to approve minutes as corrected. Nunes 2nd. Passed 3-0-2.

Purchase Requests

a. Grant from Cal Fire to help support fighting wildfires: Grant will bring in about
520,000 for jackets, pants, and equipment. Cesaretti made a motion to approve
Resolution 20-8-1 approving the Department of Forestry and Fire Protection
Agreement #7FG20048. Cesaretti 2nd. Passed 3-0-2.

b. Wildland Clothing: Cesaretti made a motion to purchase 10 sets of wildland PPE from
Curtis not to exceed $6,800. Nunes 2nds. Passed 3-0-2.

c. AEDs: Nunes made a motion to purchase 3 LifePak 1000 defibrillators with a 4-year
maintenance contract. from Stryker to replace obsolete units, not to exceed $10,750.
Cesaretti 2nds. Passed 3-0-2.

d. Wildland Gloves: Cesaretti made a motion to purchase 40 pairs of wildland gloves
from Curtis not to exceed $2100. Nunes 2nds. Passed 3-0-2.

e. Refrigerator: Chief Bullard requested direction on purchasing a new refrigerator.
Option 1 would be typical 3 quotes or option 2 would be from the Sears appliance
outlet which would be less expensive, but single item vendor. Board approved getting
the best price at Sears outlet.

Bills & Warrants: Stipend pay dropped due to loss of seasonal CALFIRE employees.

Cesaretti made a motion to accept the Check Detail as written for $56,437.03. Nunes

2nd. Passed 3-0-2.

Budget Report

a. Update on CDARS account reporting from December 2019 to July 2020: CDARS
account will no longer be reported on Deposit Detail. Account was closed in 2016 and
reported in error between December 2019 and July 2020 due to bookkeeper
transition. Capital Reserves account will be merged with ICS account since it was a
requirement for the former USDA loan and is no longer needed.

Correspondence: Pitts received 2020 Biennial Notice for Conflict of Interest Codes. If

amendments are not needed, the deadline is October 1, 2020. If changes are needed,

the deadline will be December 30,2020. She will follow up with Board Directors if action
is needed.




14. Fire Chief's Report
a. Roster, Alarms and Drills.
i. Cesaretti made a motion to add Jeremiah Mahan and Jennifer Gehrmann as new
Trainees. Nunes 2nd. 3-0-2.

ii. 58 calls for service

fii. 13 drills and activities
15. Closed Session: None
16. Adjournment: 8:09 pm

Respectfully Submitted,

Bill Bullard, Interim Recording Secretary Mario Cesaretti, Treasurer

Bob Maddocks, President Wes Gray, Secretary

Torrey Farmer, Vice-President Jason Nunes, Member




GRATON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES
August 27th, 2020 7:00pm

vk W

Call to Order: 7:01 pm

Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll Call: Farmer, Cesaretti, Nunes. Also present: Bullard, Fisher.

Additions or Corrections to Agenda: None

New Business

a. Review and Adopt Personnel Terms: Bullard reported that the District
received approval from CalPERS to move forward on retirement package after
13 months. The Personnel Terms were done by hiring subcommittee and
reviewed by District HR law firm. Board reviewed retirement options for
CalPERS “Classic” members. Resident provided public comment related to
letters sent to the Board and Brown Act. Nunes moved to accept new and
updated personnel terms and offer Option 2: a 401K style program up to 3%
(to match the amount "lost") for Classic employees. Cesaretti 2nds. Passed 3-
0-0.

b. Review and Adopt new and updated Policies and Procedures: Bullard
shared the changes are related to standard operating guidelines, grievance
procedures, and career staff policies. Nunes moves to adopt the new Policies
and Procedures. Cesaretti 2nds. Passed 3-0-0.

Adjournment: 7:30 pm




INSURANCE SUPPLEMENT - TERRORISM
POLICYHOLDER DISCLOSURE
NOTICE OF TERRORISM
INSURANCE COVERAGE

You are hereby notified that under the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, as amended, that you
have a right to purchase insurance coverage for losses resulting from acts of terrorism, as
defined in Section 102(1) of the Act: The term “act of terrorism” means any act that is certified
by the Secretary of the Treasury—in consultation with the Secretary of the Homeland Security,
and the Attorney General of the United States—to be an act of terrorism: to be a violent act or
an act that is dangerous to human life, property, or infrastructure: to have resulted in damage
within the United States, or outside the United States in the case of an air carrier or vessel or
the premises of a United States mission; and to have been committed by an individual or
individuals as part of an effort to coerce the civilian population of the United States or to
influence the policy or affect the conduct of the United States Government by coercion.

YOU SHOULD KNOW THAT WHERE COVERAGE IS PROVIDED BY THIS POLICY FOR LOSSES
RESULTING FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM SUCH LOSSES MAY BE PARTIALLY
REIMBURSED BY THE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT UNDER A FORMULA ESTABLISHED BY
FEDERAL LAW. HOWEVER, YOUR POLICY MAY CONTAIN OTHER EXCLUSIONS WHICH MIGHT
AFFECT YOUR COVERAGE, SUCH AS EXCLUSION FOR NUCLEAR EVENTS. UNDER THIS
FORMULA, THE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT GENERALLY REIMBURSES [85%THROUGH 2015;
84% BEGINNING ON JANUARY 1, 2016; 83% BEGINNING ON JANUARY 1, 2017: 82% BEGINNING
ON JANUARY 1, 2018; 81% BEGINNING ON JANUARY 1, 2019 AND 80% BEGINNING ON JANUARY
1, 2020] OF COVERED TERRORISM LOSSES EXCEEDING THE STATUTORILY ESTABLISHED
DEDUCTIBLE PAID BY THE INSURANCE COMPANY PROVIDING THE COVERAGE. THE PREMIUM
CHARGED FOR THIS COVERAGE IS PROVIDED BELOW AND DOES NOT INCLUDE ANY CHARGES
FOR THE PORTION OF LOSS COVERED BY THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT UNDER THE ACT.

YOU SHOULD ALSO KNOW THAT THE TERRORISM RISK INSURANCE ACT, AS AMENDED,
CONTAINS A $100 BILLION CAP THAT LIMITS U.S. GOVERNMENT REIMBURSEMENT AS WELL AS
INSURERS' LIABILITY FOR LOSSES RESULTING FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM WHEN
THE AMOUNT OF SUCH LOSSES IN ANY ONE CALENDAR YEAR EXCEEDS $100 BILLION. IF THE
AGGREGATE INSURED LOSSES FOR ALL INSURERS EXCEED $100 BILLION, YOUR COVERAGE
MAY BE REDUCED.

Acceptance or Rejection of Terrorism Insurance Coverage

L] I hereby elect to purchase terrorism coverage for a prospective premium of
$77.00.

] I hereby decline to purchase terrorism coverage. | understand that | will have no
coverage for losses resulting from acts of terrorism

Policyholder/Applicant's Signature Insurance Company

Allied World Insurance Company (AWIC)

Print Name Policy Number

Date

TRIA EF 0115
13 2015 National Association of Insurance Commissioners




Structure Hose and Roller
8/11/2020

Vendor Price

Cascade Fire Equipment | $ 8,625

National Fire Fighter corp | S 8,527

Darley and Fire Hose direct $ 8,696

SHITWIN|

Requested Motion: | Make a Motion to
purchase 40 Lengths of Fire Hose and 1 Hose
Roller from Cascade Fire Equipment not to
exceeded $9000.00




T 3o T a8eq

00'008 pX ‘Bujuea)) uonels e g Ajddng a9y jem D[ LSSE
L9°C6T 3JIAI9S DUOYd 0LSSEDT6EL 11V 19N [BD|99SE
00°8/T gEX ‘sjudBUIQ SBWISMY) }onq disse|) 9yl |ssse
00°8v1'T 81TX ‘YT JojesadQ Janng INASO/2.1d [BD|PSSE
61°9¢€L x Ajquiassy 3jag 1eas {Gx s1ayde.ig auisug "Juj a4l suoHng €9SE
6t L80°T (Auesiem seah p yum) JojesasLiyoy piaejng |jigi¢9s€
00°00T sep xajdwo) Suuiyd NN paeduswy asini) /winajoslad 11shog|15G5¢E
LL'6LT uawasInquiay xajdwo) Suiuiysin NN jeyiuawinjg unsng|osse
00°LIT X ‘sHI3YD punoiSHioeg J931unjop MaN SHI3YD) punoidpeg ealy Aeg|erSE
8b'q8t X ‘Aejdsig dn speaH siossaidwo) Janeg |8y se
16°LY uswasInquiay xajdwo) Suluysn NN 198ua|jeg wes|/ySE
TS L0€E'0S soxe] Y3 pue 33 0Z0¢/8/6 I|041Aed dav|dav
66'VLLT 02/8/6 1104Aed annessiuiwpy sid AsupAsiaa
80°ZSE‘L xa|dwo) NN weay ayns Jsuunys 11en 10905
A AT xadwo3l NNT weat s SOBIS Yysoriaa
9/,'189V xa|dwo) NN weax s Aysmouqes 112qoy|0090S
€2°9290T xa|dwo) NN weax xS Ie)sniAl uef 6650S
€€°L8Y'S xa[dwo) NN weax s |eninl qodef dd
81'950°8 xa|dwo) NNT weax ais 91N 1IeN(ad
$9°7S0°9 x3jdwo) NNT weaL ajns iequng euuaf|86509
00°89¢€‘€ xa|dwo) NN weax IS 0zus|o) Yoezi/6S0S
S9'VEY'6 xa|dwo) NN weax ayiis [eyiuswnig unsnqg|ad
70°585°6 x3[dwo) NN weax ayuIs 1n9ueg ajAx(aa
90°9tt’s xa|dwo) NN weax NS 193us|jeg [snwes|ad
€1°sv6 xa[dwo) NNT WeaL IS Aoy epuewy (96505
96°528 x9jdwo) NN wesa] ays zapueutad uedy|aaq
91'9¢8‘s xajdwo) NN wea L ays yueysxoni) Aespuri|S650S
8L'STSL xadwo) NNT weay RS piejing {1g9,ad
L9°L€8T xa|dwo) NN wea] IS zaJenly allyddes|aa
6S°C09 02/8/6 l101Aed wieg 231} 27 epuil| #6509
v5°26 s394 ||oJAed dQV davauijuo
|p301 wip4 334) | 414 uopIo owaN awppN wnpn
0¢0¢/8/6
|1B1aQ MI9YyD
siseq ysed
1213181 U01129104d 0Z/80/60
aJl14 uojeso WNd Zb'Z




Z Jo g 98eg

€7°809°S9T | 65°209 ¥9°S00'591
9L Tl 6T T« x# 120V swalsAs JuawAhed ajesodio) -ueg SN|ZLSE
00°0S/Z (s1eah g) aremyjos Sunioliuol sejos A313u3 1ejos 15802)1SOM | TZSE
69°€8 poo4 xajdwo) Buiuysii NN1 Jauupis e |0LSE
98°18 23puiy 10} 19X EWa)| J91ua) asempJeH jodoiseqas|eaose
69°vLY 1) dwind pue £9¢8 ‘0918 @dueuauiew Ajyjuowig uo0sialad|89s¢
§/°02T'S Sx ‘Ayueiem pue yoed Asayieq ‘siaSieyd /m uased SSOPUM MBd|295¢
$5°9G51°C s1ad.1eyd pue Jead oiped l1ed suQig9s¢
96%8 pue £9p8 ‘seanixyy dwejpesH 1818 “4amoL WYsi SEvs
‘xajdwo) 3utuiysin NN uondadsul Ayajes ggyg pue £9t8
0€ 0V 9x ‘Bujusasds 3nuqg P3IN-N230|59SE
TL°6L0°C suojjeo QZLX jassiqg wnajos1ad Aeg YUON |{9SE
00°006 92UspUOdSdLI0) PUE SULID| [QUUOSIDd MIINDY d11 ‘sauof 1@ suouly ‘[JLIBINI| £9GE
LS'SE sep Ajnr 9/ shiesnH|z9se
79°0ST dwind Y17 |and €9v8 901AIBS BPIYaA Aduasiawl a1e1S Udp|oD | TISE
JXAAS Yyaund sse|n mopuim U} sj{en|09sE
06°8S I3[l pe9M pue poo4 juejd juswanoiduwi] SWOH suewpaild|6SSE
TU6LE'S 0TX ‘s1e0d puejp|iM pue siied gpX ‘SaA0|D pue|p|i S90.I3H 104 5|00] SILND|8SSE
|p101 wp4 33l | a4iq uojnio owaN awny wnn
0202/8/6
llereq oaud

12143S1 UOI13d93104d SIsed 4sed

35! ! 0Z/80/60

all4 uojeln Nd 4T




Z2 30 | abed

izl 8suadxg pjoyssnoH - 809 isded 19jioj pue sjomos ioded 003S09
96°6. [oAel | juoneyiodsuel] - 00g. poo4 xajdwod BuluybI NN 194\ 80oNpoud s Apuy
0001 asuadx3y 39140 - 009 Zx ‘bunsiy suibuzg auijuQ }siisbiesd
12°0¢ jeuosisad/buiyio D - 0209 ade] dooT pue ¥OO0H jeujsnpuj uozewy
FASNA sjuaunsuy/sioo] llewg - 0899 sdwiefd /m moqig onseld ul g/ lodag awioH
yo'Le asuadx3 ao1H40 - 00V9 Muj Jajund uouen uozewy
16°6¢ sal|ddng [edIpal - 1929 10)IUO uozewy
uonjeinjeg uabAxQ pooig ojgeniod
AR aouBUBIUIBI S[OIUSA - G619 Jajeadg usiig uozewyy
9v°'¢8 sapinn - 02€l 82IAI8G auoyd 181V
9'0Z1 SUOB2IUNWIWOY - 0¥09 aoialag ped] auibug SS3JaJIM UOZLIDA
Gggocl soueuajulely Juawdinb3 - opL9 yojed pue ¥y Jeday ying Aig ECHTTIIEN |
92'9¢ aoueudluiepy juawdinbg - L9 1y Jreday ung Aig uozewy
9L’Ly saljddng [esipaly - 1929 I3AO Jusned Aiddng pajy AsH
eb QL asuadx3g pjoyasnoH - 0809 sjomo] Jaded 021809
GG'6v sjuswinisu|/sjoo] |jews - 0889 91X uozewy
spieAue] 9)3SIYUM ‘OIUY 9NOSIY I9JBMA

Lo'LL SJUBWINIISU|/S|OO] |jewS - 0889 dwejn pue asoH 3003} 9 jyodaQg awioH
86°¢e Bujutes} aointag-uf - 0Z1.L SSe|D VI J9AL(Q synuoq Aj1er S MIN
6281 asuadx3 pjoyasnoH - 0809 jesg jollo 9JIAI8G POO Jews
8’8l Butulea] ao1A188-U] - 021 L S$Se|D VI J8AlQg synuo( Ajiar S MIN
86°¢C Buiutes | 8dinag-uf - 0Z1L SSelD Vi I8ALd sihuoq Ajler S MIN
8.°C1 Buiutea] ao1A198-Uf - 0Z1L sse|D V| 49ALQ AxonT
junouwy ydg owIapy SweN

0202 ‘g 1equiaydag ybnoays Z| ysnbny
1oday |Ielaq uoljoesue.d] wolsny
10143S1 UON}0d)01d dll4 uojeis)

siseg |eniooy
02/80/60
Ad 2s°1




z 10z abed

000

9L’ wy'L- BunetadQ - yueg sbuineg jwwing - 0¢0l juswalels jsnbny swiaysAg
juswihed ajeiodion - jueg SN

29/ jaAeld] juoneuodsueldy - 00g/ poo4 xajdwon Buiuubiy NN Aon-

8879l [oAe4 ] juonepodsuel] - 00¢.L poo4 xajdwo? buluubi NN 00}S0D

Y6l [oAeif juoijeodsuel] - 00/ poo4 xajdwosn buinaubit AN 19)ley aonpold s, Apuy

95'sl 1aae.} juoneuodsuely - 0og. poo4 xajdwon buiunubil NN Aemajes

i6'vei joAR. ] juoneodsuRl] - 00 poo4 xejdwiog Burnubiy NN Boeys ezzid s Arepy

8L IVl sjuaWwInNIIsul/s|oo] jjews - 0889 Aajind Buimg adoy ajqnoQ ‘beg uozewy

Jeas) ‘103IUOW uabAxg pooigd aigenod
junowy ydg ITETTY oweN

0202 ‘g Joqueldag ybnoiyy z} Isnbny
Joday jie}aq uoljoesuel] woisnd
JOUISIg UODd}0Id 3114 UojelD)

siseq |eniooy
02/80/60
Nd 28°t




2:31 PM
09/08/20

Graton Fire Protection District

Accrual Basis Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
July 2020 through June 202
uly rough June 11' OTAL

Jul '20 - Jun 21 Budget % of Budge

Income
10 - Taxes
1000 - Property Taxes - CY Secure
1011 - Property Taxes - Admin Fee
1020 - Property Taxes -CY Suppler
Total 10 - Taxes

17 - Use of Money/Property
1700 - Interest on Pooled Cash
Total 17 - Use of Money/Property

20 - Intergovernmental Revenues
2440 - ST - HOPTR
2500 - ST - Grants/Other
2589 - State Revenue - Strike Tean
Total 20 - intergovernmental Revenue

40 - Miscellaneous Revenues
4040 - Miscellaneous Revenue
4102 - Donations/Reimbursements
40 - Miscellaneous Revenues - Oth
Total 40 - Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Income
Gross Profit

Expense

50 - Salaries/Employee Benefits
5911 - Reimbursement- Calls/Drills
5912 - Pay- Strike Team
5913 - Reimbursement- Boards/Co
5914 - Pay- Administrative Payroll
5915 - Stipend Pay
5917 - Sleeper Reimbursement
5918 - Contract Employees
5940 - Workers Comp

Total 50 - Salaries/Employee Benefits

60 - Supplies and Services
6020 - Clothing/Personal
6040 - Communications
6080 - Household Expense
6100 - Liability Insurance
6140 - Equipment Maintenance

0.00 0.00 0.0%

0.00 0.00 0.0%

0.00 0.00 0.0%

0.00 0.00 0.0%

0.00 0.00 0.0%

0.00 0.00 0.0%

0.00 0.00 0.0%

0.00 0.00 0.0%

0.00 0.00 0.0%

0.00 0.00 0.0%

1,677.76 0.00 100.0%

0.00 0.00 0.0%
1,872.25

3,550.01 0.00 100.0%

3,550.01 0.00 100.0%

3,650.01 0.00 100.0%

0.00 0.00 0.0%

140,253.06 0.00 100.0%

0.00 0.00 0.0%
4,693.38

9,589.79 0.00 100.0%

0.00 0.00 0.0%

0.00 0.00 0.0%

2,705.00 0.00 100.0%

167,2561.23 0.00 100.0%

7,842.62 0.00 100.0%

3,391.73 0.00 100.0%
503.97

36,949.67 0.00 100.0%

642.29 0.00 100.0%

Page 1 0of 2




2:31PM
09/08/20
Accrual Basis

6155

6261

6400

6630

7201
7300

Graton Fire Protection District

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
July 2020 th J 202
uly 0 through June 11‘OTAL

Jul '20 - Jun 21 Budget % of Budge
- Vehicle Maintenance
6180 -
6190 -

Building Maintenance
Landscape Services

- Medical Supplies
6280 -

Memberships

- Office Expense
6587 -
6610 -

LAFCO
Legal Services

- Audit Services
6800 -
6880 -
7000 -
7005 -
7120 -
7150 -

Public/Legal Notices
Small Tools/Instruments
Tree Farm Expense
Election Expense
In-Service Training
Recognition/Award

- Gas/Oil

- Transportation/Travel
7303 -
7320 -

Private Car Expense
Utilities

60 - Supplies and Services - Other

Total 60 -

Supplies and Services

66000 - Payroll Expenses
75 - Other Charges

7910 -
7930 -
Total 75 -

Long-Term Debt - Principal
Long-Term Debt - interest
Other Charges

Total Expense

Other Expense

85 - Capital Assets
8560 - New Equipment
Total 85 - Capital Assets

Total Other Expense

Net Income

3,491.61 0.00 100.0%
7.509.71 0.00 100.0%
600.27 0.00 100.0%
128.27 0.00 100.0%
0.00 0.00 0.0%
11,645.19 0.00 100.0%
1,718.00
900.00 0.00 100.0%
0.00 0.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00 0.0%
1,0561.38 0.00 100.0%
3,473.43 0.00 100.0%
0.00 0.00 0.0%
4611.96 0.00 100.0%
0.00 0.00 0.0%
2,735.00 0.00 100.0%
682.57 0.00 100.0%
0.00 0.00 0.0%
2,625.85 0.00 100.0%
76.64
90,580.16 0.00 100.0%
92.54
92,000.00 0.00 100.0%
49,143.75 0.00 100.0%
141,143.75 0.00 100.0%
389,067.68 0.00 100.0%
-385,5617.67 0.00 100.0%
0.00 0.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00 0.0%
-385,517.67 0.00 100.0%

Page 2 of 2




00°008°'¢ sse|) Y| o1esadoisanq
oleq JuswAed unowy  [S319VAIZOIY SINNODDY
juswAed jse | aoueleg | sjuswAed unowy [SNVOT 312IHIA
16°€£6°89. L |:1e10]
81°09€°Z0. L |:3uno22y §9| d1kIS HWwWNg
€1°€16°99 :Juno22y bupelsdQ 83e}S Jwwng
SLIASSY LNIHMND
9/.°119°1 :|leyol
00°00¥% juay Ajreda( 1nem
9.'1. Auadouad pswiejoun ajels vo
00°00Z°L sse|) Y| JojesadQrianlq
S1isS0d3a
07/8/6

jle1aQ yy/usodag

1014351 UOI109301d 2414 Uoleln




Fiscal Year 2020/21
Final Budget Highlights

Assumptions
- Does not include revenue from SAFER grant for staffing, $250,000

Revenue
- 2019/20 surplus between actual revenue and expenses, $171,000
- Property tax revenue increased 4% last year
- Received strike team revenue, $104,000
- Received grant money from CAL FIRE and others, $53,000
- New parcel tax estimated to bring in $877,000
- CAL FIRE Grant approved for 2020/21
- Kincade Fire FEMA check outstanding, $147,000
- LNU Lightning Complex strike team and FEMA check, estimated at $350,000

Expenses
- Refinanced mortgage, savings of $360,000 and four years early
- Career expenses are budgeted as 12 months, but only 9.5 months this year
- County reimbursing for REDCOM dispatch, savings of $24,000
- County reimbursing for Lexipol policy manual, savings of $4,000
- New insurance carrier, savings of $8,000

Planned Capital Purchases
- Defibrillators, x3 (replace obsolete models), $12,000
- engine headsets and portable radios, $33,000 (half grant)
- Engine exhaust hoses for remaining bays, x3, $8,000
- App bay fans, x2, $10,000
- Upgrade 8482 emergency lighting (many lights out), $5,000

Future Planning Items (2021 or later)
- Training tower and prop
- Firefighter housing




Resolution 20-9-1 September 9, 2020

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
GRATON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
OF SONOMA COUNTY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA,
ADOPTING A FINAL BUDGET FOR THE 2020/2021 FISCAL YEAR

WHEREAS, the Board opened the Public Hearing and on this 9" day of September 2020,
continued said Public Hearing for consideration of the final proposed budget for fiscal year
2020/2021.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board has approved the final expenditure
budget on this date as follows:

Reimbursement, Strike Teams, Standby, Work Comp S 1,390,733
Services & Supplies $ 458,241
Long-Term Liabilities S 365,000
TOTAL ANTICIPATED EXPENDITURES FOR 2020/2021: $2,213,974

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Board approved the final revenue budget on this date as
follows:

Property Tax (including secured and unsecured) $1,823,052
interest / Property Earnings Anticipated $1,000
Revenues from State & Federal Agencies $385,000
Reimbursements & Other Charges for Services $76,078
TOTAL ANTICIPATED REVENUE FOR 2020/2021: $2,285,130

The foregoing resolution was introduced this 9t day of September 2020 by Director

who moved its adoption, and seconded by Director , and

adopted on a roll call vote by the following vote:

Director Cesaretti Director Farmer Director Gray
Director Maddocks Director Nunes _
AYES: NOES: ABSTAIN: ABSENT:

WHEREUPON, the Chair declared the foregoing resolution adopted, and SO ORDERED.

CHAIR

Attest:
Clerk of the Board




Graton Fire Protection District

9/8/2020 Budget 2020/21
3
REVENUE DESCRIPTION |G AT [ ACTUAL| ACTUAL | AGTUAL | AGTUAL | BUBGET| pe
1000 |Prop Taxes - CY Secured 683,637 | 766,237 733,133 800,233 828,847 916,187 40%
1001 |Parcel Taxes - CY 877,365 38%
1011 |Prop Taxes - Admin (9,252) (9,409) (9,582) (9,817) (9,000) 0%
1012 |Prop Tax Homeowners Relf - CY 2,469 0%
1014 |Prop Taxes Backfill - CY 370 0%
1020 [Prop Taxes - CY Supp 10,842 15,471 17,659 15,497 17,000 1%
1040 |Prop Taxes - CY Unsecured 21,464 | 21,669 20,746 23,113 26,069 22,000 1%
1042 |Cost Reim - CY Coll Del Uns (408) (107) (321) (362) (500) 0%
1060 |Prop Taxes - PY Secured (245) (28) (136) (13) (500) 0%
1061 |Parcel Taxes - PY 0 0%
1080 |Prop Taxes - PY Supp 90 (18) (63) (16) 0 0%
1100 |Prop Taxes - PY Unsecured 1,259 257 429 419 500 0%
Property Taxes 704,693 | 790,493 759,831 831,292 863,825 | 1,823,052 80%
Growth 8% 12% -4% 9% 1% 111% 0%
1700 |[Interest on Pooled Cash 10 84 124 144 211 500 0%
1701 |Interest Earned 6,840 478 747 1,703 1,557 500 0%
1705 |Interest From Bank 0%
6,850 562 871 1,847 1,769 1,000 0%
2400 |ST - Disaster Relief 44,046 0%
2440 |ST - HOPTR 5,250 5,150 2,597 2,523 5,000 0%
2500 |ST - Other (Grants) 415 21,499 51,852 8,720 20,000 1%
2589 |Strike Teams 54,055 | 79,292 159,178 117,377 103,601 360,000 16%
54,955 | 84,957 185,827 171,926 158,890 385,000 17%
4020 [Tree Farm Revenue 53,595 | 60,424 85,948 84,569 74,900 70,000 3%
4040 [Miscellaneous Revenue 12,823 433 5,218 14,736 885 4,078 0%
4101 |Ins/Personal Damage Rebate 200 15 0 0%
4102 |Donations/Reimbursements 7,544 3,140 4,334 20,058 8,074 2,000 0%
4109 |Qutdate/Cancel Warrants 0 0 0%
4113 |Returned Checks 0 0 0%
4600 |Sale of Fixed Asset 19,800 1,000 1,000 0 0%
4620 |Unclm-OT-Within a Fund 0 0 0%
93,961 63,997 95,499 120,362 84,874 76,078 3%
Total Revenue 860,459 | 940,008 | 1,042,029 | 1,125,428 | 1,109,358 | 2,285,130 100%
Growth|  20% 9% 11% 9% -1% 106%




Graton Fire Protection District

9/8/2020 Budget 2020/21

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 % of
EXPENSE DESCRIPTION ACTUAL | ACTUAL | ACTUAL | ACTUAL | ACTUAL | BUDGET | Exp
5910 |Pay-Firefighters 540,000] 24%
5911 |Reimbursement-Calis/Drills 54,005| 49,331] 45614 48,561 54,406 50,000 . 2%
5912 |Pay-Strike Team 30,139 57,593} 110,289 91,212 74,258 240,000 1%
5913 |Reimbursement-Board Meetings 1,375 6,937 2,805 1,650 2,075 3,000 0%
5914 |Pay-Administrative 5,209 32,400 1%
5915 |Pay-Day Shift 1,200 14,667 11,781 123,973 120,450 5%
5916 |Pay-Overtime 86,400 4%
5917 |Reimbursement-Night Shift 26,551 25905| 20,340 22,315 16,625 29,200 1%
5918 |Contract Employees 2,248 1,840 4,780 2,770 1,613 3,000 0%
5923 |Retirement-CalPERS/PEPRA 75,600 3%
5924 |Retirement-457 Plan 4,000 0%
5925 |FICA (Medicare/S8) 16,495 1%
5930 |Insurance-Health/Dental/Vision 90,000 4%
5931 |Insurance-Long Term Disability 1,980 0%
5935 |Unemployment 15,931 1%
5940 |Worker's Comp 12,957 3,889 2,267 7,667 17,080 82,277 4%
127,274 146,695| 200,762 185,956) 295,238/ 1,390,733| 63%
6020 |Clothing/Personal 12,853] 20,212 22756 28,946 32,306 40,000 2%
6040 |Communications 11,881 13,597| 15,554 21,498 20,540 46,000 2%
6080 |Household Expense 0 31 0 0 598 4,000 0%
6100 |Insurance 26,108] 25988] 29,302 35,567 36,856 40,000 2%
6140 |Maintenance-Equipment 12,061 10,280 3,861 12,055 15,534 15,000 1%
6155 |Maintenance-Vehicle 35,007 56,737 30,639 33,913 55,032 55,000 2%
6180 |Maintenance-Bldg/Imp 20,086 60,201 36,752 35,089 24,057 34,000 2%
6190 |Landscape Services 10,550 5840 16,498 6,467 4,638 12,000 1%
6261 |Medical Supplies 4,128 3,818 4,357 3,451 7,916 17,000 1%
6280 |Memberships 2,963 2,593 2,291 2,120 3,039 3,000 0%
6400 |Office Expense 11,126 9,605 8,878 10,807 16,154 8,000 0%
6521 |County Services 448 5,031 2,133 0 0%
6526 |Dispatch Services 21,562] (21,733) 8,351 0 0%
6536 |Bank Fees 35 0 0%
6587 |[LAFCO 1,314 1,396 1,282 1,741 1,803 1,741 0%
6610 |Legal Services 5,923 1,025] 29,955 9,034 5,288 15,000 1%
6630 |Audit/Acc't Services 13,070 11,819 10,350 10,877 12,210 11,000 0%
6800 |Public/Legal Notices 471 1,020 500 0%
6880 |Small Tools/Instruments 15,548) 20,977 15,707 15,240 40,438 25,000 1%
6883 |Fire Equipment 502| 13,469 0 0 0 0%
7000 |Tree Farm Expense 48,491 48,712| 66,346 77,249 95,895 70,000 3%
7005 |Election Expense 29,517 37,986 15,000 1%
7120 |Training-In Service 5,636/ 10,385] 13,201 12,253 12,978 15,000 1%
7150 |Recognition/Awards 16 0] 0%
7201 |Gas/Qil 4,436 5,438 7,590 7,661 12,059 12,000 1%
7300 |Transportation/Travel 131 3,490 2,563 3,577 3,071 5,000 0%
7303 |Private Car Expense 1,800 3,000 1,800 5,400 6,541 6,000 0%
7320 {Utilities 3,567 3,763 5,447 5,563 6,349 8,000 0%
269,189| 315,707 335,614 368,511] 452,308 458,241, 21%
7910 |L.T. Debt - Principal 77,0000 37,975 38,538 38,688 89,000 115,000 5%
7930 |L.T. Debt - Interest 121,781| 160,169] 157,731 254,300] 102,073 100,000 5%
Apparatus Debt - Principal 100,000 5%
8510 |Bldgs/Improvements 16,244 10,000 0%
8560 INew Capital Equipment 6,000 55,968 40,378 40,000 2%
221,025) 198,144 252,237 333,366 191,073 365,000] 16%
Total Expenses 617,489| 660,546 788,613 887,833| 938,618] 2,213,974 100%

|Surplus/(Deficit) | 242,970 279,462| 253,416| 237,595| 170,740| 71,156




Resolution 20-9-2 September 9, 2020

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
GRATON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
OF SONOMA COUNTY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA,
ADOPTING A FINAL CAPITAL RESERVES BUDGET FOR THE 2020/2021 FISCAL YEAR

WHEREAS, the Board opened the Public Hearing and on this 9'" day of September 2020,
continued said Public Hearing for consideration of the final proposed capital reserves budget
for fiscal year 2020/2021.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board has approved the final expenditure
capital reserves budget on this date as follows:
Capital Purchases/Improvements S0

TOTAL ANTICIPATED EXPENDITURES FOR 2020/2021: S0

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Board approved the final revenue capital reserves budget
on this date as follows:

Unclaimed Operating Fund Revenue Within a Fund S0

TOTAL ANTICIPATED REVENUE FOR 2020/2021: S0

The foregoing resolution was introduced this 9% day of September 2020 by Director

who moved its adoption, and seconded by Director , and

adopted on a roll call vote by the following vote:

Director Cesaretti Director Farmer Director Gray
Director Maddocks Director Nunes ___
AYES: NOES: ABSTAIN: ABSENT:

WHEREUPON, the Chair declared the foregoing resolution adopted, and SO ORDERED.

CHAIR

Attest:
Clerk of the Board




8/8/2020

Graton Fire Protection District
Budget 2020-2
CAPITAL RESERVES FUND

REVENUE DESCRIPTION 2021
BUDGET
1700 Interest on Pooled Cash 0
4021 Proceeds from Property Sales 0
4102 Donations/Reimbursements 0
4109 Qutdate/Cancel Warrants 0
4620 Uncim-OT-Within a Fund 0
4680 Long Term Debt Proceeds 0
Total Revenue 0
EXPENSE DESCRIPTION 2021
BUDGET
8510 Building/Improvements
8560 Equipment 0
8620 Unclm-OT-Within a Fund 0
Total Expenses 0
Surplus/(Deficit) 0
Starting Fund Balance 2,069,866
Ending Fund Balance 2,069,866




Graton Fire Protection [District

Post Office Box A, Graton, California 95444 www.gratonfire.com

ROSTER

1 |Bill Bullard 8400 |Chief / EMT B 292-7286| 887-8484
2 |Scott Fisher 8401 |Deputy Chief B 529-4483] 829-9344
3 Robert Sabrowsky 8402 ]Asst Chief / EMT B 486-8481] 823-5725
4 |Darrell Kopriva 8403 JCaptain C+ 486-3775] 536-9992 | W} 576-1371
5 Han Muskar 8404|Captain / EMT A 396-1147
6 |Jason Gray Engineer / EMT A 236-2605
7 lLindsay Cruckshank Engineer C+ 696-6049] 869-5616] W| 823-1542
8 |Sapphire Alvarez Engineer / EMT B 478-4908
9 |Dustin Blumenthal Engineer / EMT C+ 490-2626
10 {Kyler Walker Engineer /| EMT B 328-8234
11 |Dusty Parker Engineer /| EMT B 953-0581
12 |[Ed Miranda Firefighter C 483-0391
13 }Zach Colenzo Firefighter C 292-9739
14 |Josh Skikos Firefighter C 529-0383] 829-4522|W
15 [Shane Spelman Firefighter / EMT C+ 494-0929] 829-1934
16 JJonathan Preciado Firefighter / EMT C 480-5010
17 IMatt Skinner Firefighter C+ ]1530-680-1046
18 jJacob Mual Firefighter / EMT C 721-4817
19 [Matt Miller Firefighter / EMT C 569-6301
20 |Levi DeCarly Firefighter / EMT C 483-3280
21 |Chaz Mathias Firefighter C 480-0213
22 |Kyle Bartlett Firefighter / EMT C+ 490-6077
23 |Ryan Fernandez Firefighter / EMT C 332-6585
24 |Jenna Dunbar Firefighter C ]805-400-8589
25 JAmanda Roy Firefighter / EMT C 495-3055
26 [Chris Lomanto Firefighter C 888-1057
27 |Ben Miller Firefighter / EMT B 326-1610
28 |Sam Ballenger Firefighter C 393-9080
29 JJeremiah Mahan Trainee / EMT C 217-1484
30 |Jennifer Gehrmann Trainee C ]1209-743-2248
31 |Evan Jacobs Cadet L 490-9491] £§29-1161
Bob Maddocks President 888-4020] 823-9575
Torrey Farmer Vice President 495-7123
Mario Cesaretti Treasurer 591-5600} 823-9400
Wes Gray Secretary 953-1409] 823-5812
Jason Nunes Member 849-1311
GFPD Business Phone Number 823-8400
GFPD Fax Number 823-7251
Graton Firefighters Association Phone Number 823-8400 x120
Graton Fire Administrative Assistant, Sydney Pitts 978-0166
Graton Fire Tree Farm/Heather O'Dell 322-2091
Graton Fire Investigator/John Teague , ~ 483-1433

CONFIDENTIAL - DO NOT SHARE * EFFECTIVE DATE September 2020 *




89

89

1ejog

SFERIER

all4 uonelebsp

(VAR Il

uoisl|joD ouel |

all4 ainjonng

anosay

OO~ |0 M|

suolejjsoue) / I8yio

[ 44

lC

PlY [BSIPSIN

©
—

0l

uonebisanuy|

1eN-ZeH

uonIpuUOD snopiezeH

yeaq se9

4

we|y aii-

—|OIO|O(O

L

all4 sugaq

0€

ol

vl

PIY [ENININ/OINY

9

9

IBD SOIAISS/ASISSY

S[ejol I|NNr |AVIN

ddV

dVIN | g4 | NVl | D30 |AON | 100 | d3S | 9NV

nr

adA]

WO 2.1} COHN.:DV MMM

1€0¢-020¢C SINYHVTV TVNNNY




Giraton Fire Protection District

Post OfTice Box A, Graton, California 95444

www. gratonfire.com

Drill & Activity Reports AUG 2020

# Date Description Type
1) 08/01 Driver Operator 1A S
2) 08/02 Driver Operator 1A S
3) 08/04 Officers Meeting S
4) 08/06 Ropes & Knots R
5) 08/08 Driver Operator 1A S
6) 08/09 Driver Operator 1A S
7) 08/13 Low Angle Rescue R
8) 08/17 Driver Testing 8485 (K. Walker) S
9) 08/19 Volunteer Interviews S
10) 08/20 LNU Lightning Complex Update R
11) 08/27 Thursday Truck Checks R

(DW) Duty Weekend

(R) Regular Drill

(RC) Regular Drill with County Instructor

(S) Special Drill

(M Trainee Drill

Prepared By: Capt. Darrell Kopriva




